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Application

04222 - CDBG Economic Development- 2012 Allocation

04667 - Equipment for Lakes Region Community College Nursing Program
CDBG - Economic Development

Status: Editing

Submitted Date:

Primary Contact

Ms. Carmen Lorentz
Name:*

Salutation First Name Middle Name Last Name
Title: Executive Director
Address: BCEDC

383 South Main Street
. Laconia New Hampshire 03246

City State/Province Postal Code/Zip
County Belknap

City Outside NH:

603-524-3057

Phone (999-999-9999) Ext.

Phone:*

alternate phone number

alternate phone type



Fax:

Email: director@bcedc.org

Organization Information

Name: County of Belknap
Type: County

Tax ID:

Website:

Fiscal Year End:

Address: 34 County Drive

) ) Laconia New Hampshire 03246
City/State/Zip*
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip
City Outside NH:
County Belknap
Executive Council Districts District 1 - Councilor Raymond S. Burton
603-527-3400
Phone:*
(999-999-9999) Ext.
Fax:
Authorized Official Debra Shackett
Don't have a DUNS #? Click here to apply.
DUNS Number (Required): 07-398-0765

Don't have a CCR #? Click here to apply.

CCR CAGE Number (Central Contractor Registry)

Project Information

Are you using a Grant Writer Yes
If Yes, what is his/her name Carmen Lorentz
Grant Writer's Phone 603-524-3057

Belknap County Economic Development Council
Grant Writer's Address 383 South Main Street
Laconia, NH 03246

Is this a Joint Application No


http://www.dnb.com/US/duns_update/
http://www.ccr.gov/

Joint Applicant
Joint Applicant, if any

Street Address/P.O. Box

City

Contact Person

Phone

Email

Sub Grantee

The Sponsor or Intermediary Organization (Sub grantee)
The Economic Development Entity (EDE)

Street Address/P.O. Box

City

Contact Person
Phone
Email
The Business

The Business

City

Contact Person
Phone

Email
Headquarters
Type of Business

Other Information

Select Town or

. Belknap
City

City County

Lakes Region Community College

379 Belmont Road

Select Town or

. Belknap
City

City County
Scott Kalicki
603-524-3207

skalicki@ccsnh.edu

LRGHealthcare

80 Highland Street

Laconia Belknap

City County
Henry Lipman
603-527-2802
hlipman@Irgh.org
Laconia, NH

Hospital

Zip Code

03246

Zip Code

03246

Zip Code



Don't know or don't have an NAICS Code? Click here to lookup or apply.

NAICS Codes 622110
Don't have a DUNS #? Click here to apply.

DUNS # 07-396-8455
Location of Project Laconia, NH

Link for Census Tract and Block Group numbers:
US Census Bureau .

Census group/block/tract 9660

) 7
Total number of jobs

Created Retained

Number of jobs that will be filled by low/moderate income 5
beneficiaries
Type of Economic Development Grant Grant to the Non Profit Creating Jobs
Expected time required for project completion 18 months
TIN Number 02-0222150

Executive Summary Description of Project

Note: 2000 character limit

This $140,000 grant will be used to purchase new training equipment for the nursing program at Lakes Region Community
College. This summer the College will break ground on an expansion and renovation of its Center for Arts & Technology
building (C.A.T. building), which will include a new nursing simulation lab. The current nursing lab consists of several beds
lining the edges of the nursing classroom, which does not provide a separate and realistic simulation environment for students,
and it does not have any modern training manikins that simulate symptoms in human patients. The new nursing simulation lab
will be a separate lab space outfitted with two SimMan 3G Manikins, which will provide nursing students with a much more
realistic simulation experience to enhance their training. This grant will be used to purchase these two "manikins." A total of
seven jobs will be created by this grant: two (2) jobs will be created at the College as a result of the C.A.T. building expansion
and five (5) jobs will be counted at LRGHealthcare (LRG) as a result of Licensed Nursing Assistants (LNA) or Licencesed
Practical Nurses (LPN) upgrading their skills via the nursing program at the College and then obtaining higher level employment
at LRG.

Business Ownership and Organization Narrative

Legal Name of Business LRGHealthcare

Address 80 Highland Street
Laconia Belknap 3246
city County Zip

Authorized Official/CEO name Tom Clairmont

Phone 603-527-2801

Fax 603-527-2887

Cell

Email tomclairmont@metrocast.net


http://www.naics.com/search.htm
http://www.dnb.com/US/duns_update/
http://www.factfinder.census.gov/servlet/AGSGeoAddressServlet?_lang=en&_programYear=50&_treeId=420

Contact Person for application (if different from CEQ) Henry Lipman

Phone 603-527-2802
Fax 603-527-2887
Type of Business Hospital
NAICS Code 622110

Dunn and Bradstreet Number 073968455

80 Highland Street
Laconia, NH 03246

Headquarters Address

Business Ownership

Describe the ownership of the business, the business organization, its other affiliated businesses, and (if applicable) its relationship to a larger
corporate structure.

Note: 2000 character limit.

LRGHealthcare (LRG) is the parent company of Lakes Region General Hospital, Franklin Regional Hospital, Affiliated Medical
Providers, HealthLink, Community Wellness Centers in Laconia and Center Harbor, Occupational Health and Rehabilitation
Services, the Dental Resource Center, the Holistic Health Center and several other community-based health initiatives. This
comprehensive health system is designed to respond to the changing health and wellness needs of the individuals and families
of the Lakes and Three Rivers Regions.

Business History

Include a brief business history.

Note: 2000 character limit.

Laconia's first hospital was founded in 1893 with a $6,175 bequeath from Rhoda Ladd's estate. Recoginizing the need for a
hospital facility, the town of Laconia raised the additional funding needed, and opened the Cottage Hospital on Court Street.
The goal was to provide quality care for those in need, regardless of their ability to pay. The hospital cared for 11 patients in the
first year it was open.

In 1908, it was clear that community need for the hospital had outgrown the Court Street location, and a new hospital was
opened at the present site on Highland Street. The facility was renamed Laconia Hospital, and over the years, it grew to
accommodate the needs of residents of Laconia and beyond. In 1967, as a reflection of the growing reach of the hospital's
care, the name was changed to Lakes Region General Hospital (LRGH).

In the early 1900s, residents of the neighboring community of Franklin also recognized the need for a hospital facility. The
Ladies' Hospital Aid Society was formed with the goal of providing the town with medical supplies and at-home nursing care.
After nine years of community service, they were offered the Aiken Homestead at a dramatically reduced price of $14,500, and
the new Franklin Hospital Association was formed. Local philantrhopists contributed the money for construction and on New
Year's Day 1910, Franklin Regional Hospital (FRH) opened its doors.

In 2002, LRGH and FRH merged to become LRGHealthcare.

Management Qualifications

Describe any particular qualifications of management relative to the project.

Note: 2000 character limit.



Over the years, LRGHealthcare has partnered with Lakes Region Community College to improve the nursing program by
advising on programming and donating equipment. This project is a natural progression of that supportive and collaborative
relationship and LRGHealthcare's leadership team is committed to working with the College to help local LNAs and LPNs
upgrade their skills. In particular Henry Lipman, Senior Vice President Financial Strategy & External Relations will oversee the
implementation of LRG's commitment to helping five LNAs or LPNs upgrade their skills through the College's nursing program
and obtain higher level employment at LRG as a result of their additional training.

Mr. Lipman joined LRG’s administrative staff in 1984 as the Budget Planning Director. In 1985, he was appointed Vice
President of Professional Services. In 1990 he assumed the role of Vice President of Professional Services and Finance and in
1997 became Vice President & Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Lipman was appointed to the position of Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer in January 2000. Mr. Lipman graduated Magna Cum Laude from the University of New Hampshire’s
Health Care Management and Policy Program and received his Masters in Business Administration with a concentration in
health care management from Boston University. In 2003, Mr. Lipman, a Fellow of the American College of Healthcare
Executives, was elected Regent for the State of New Hampshire to the American College of Healthcare Executives.

In November 2005, Mr. Lipman was elected to Laconia’s City Council. Prior to joining LRG, Mr. Lipman was employed at
Concord Hospital in Concord, New Hampshire as a Management Engineer Assistant.

EDE Review

Evidence of the EDEs Review of the Project
Historical Data on the Business

Discuss the ability of the business to manage cash flow appropriately, review and identify contingent liabilities, and determine if the sales and
market projections are realistic. Discuss the strength of the business's present financial position and any circumstances that may affect the
future of the business.

Note: 2000 character limit.

LRGHealthcare (LRG) is a long-standing non-profit health care institution in the Lakes Region. One of LRG's challenges is
related to the demographics in its service area, where only 77% of adults have health insurance (versus 89% statewide). The
significantly higher concentration of employment in low-wage service sector jobs that typically do not provide health insurance
as a benefit have put a growing burden on LRG to provide a high and growing level of charitable care and community benefit
services which totaled over $30 million in fiscal year 2011. On top of that, the decision in June 2011, by the state legislature to
radically change the Medicaid Enhancement Tax, effectively resulted in a new tax of $9.0 to $10.0 million for LRG. This is in
addition to cumulative payment cuts of $4 million annually from prior legislative initiatives. These major cuts created the need
for LRG to take some kind of action to prevent significant operating losses from undermining its service to the community at-
large. As a result, LRG recently had to reduce the number of Medicaid patients that it serves by 3,500 in order to mitigate its
financial exposure and ensure financial viability going forward. Nevertheless, LRG has invested wisely over the past decade in
equipment and facility upgrades that strengthen its ability to serve the health care needs of the Lakes and Three Rivers
Regions and finished fiscal year 2011 with a net operating gain in a very difficult environment.

Projections and the Impact of the Project



Check project proforma for accuracy and probability;

Analyze cash flow projections to determine that adequate cash flow will exist to cover all indebtedness and meet job creation and compensation
commitments;

Examine project costs for reasonableness. (HUD feels that cost components more than $10,000 should be verified by independent, third party
sources such as appraisers and suppliers);

Describe the financing gap;
Develop financing terms appropriate to cash flow needs;
Determine collateral, security, and conditions appropriate to project;

Review the appropriate North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code for the business. (Using reference manuals like the
Robert Morris Associates Annual Statements Studies and Financial Studies of the Small Business by Financial Research Associates, compare
the business with other businesses of a similar size in the same NAICS code);

Ensure that the business has provided their Dun & Bradstreet (DUNS) number; (if the business does not have a DUNS number, the business
can call a toll-free DUNS number request line at 1-866-705-5711 to obtain a number);

Compare rates of return to the business ownership to those of comparable businesses in the industry; and
Determine what will be the rate of return on investment to the business ownership and to the EDE, as a result of the project.

Note: 2000 character limit.

In the 2012-13 biennial budget, the state appropriated $6.4 million for a new addition to the Center for Arts &

Technology building at the College. This addition will house expanded space for the nursing program, fire science program,
new labs and classroom space for chemistry, biology and physics, and a 150-seat lecture hall. The construction iteself will cost
$5.8 million. Architecture and engineering services are budgeted at $450,000. This leaves only $150,000 for equipment and
furnishings. The preliminary estimate for furniture and equipment needed for the new addition is at least $500,000, leaving a
gap of $350,000. This $140,000 grant would pay for part of the new equipment needed for the nursing program.

Other Issues

Within the financial analysis, determine what benefits were negotiated for low and moderate income people with the business. Also, assess the
cash value of those benefits;

Describe the proposed project and the structure of the financing and equity arrangements, including that of the proposed CDBG loan; and
Demonstrate that CDBG funds will not be disbursed in a manner that puts them in disproportionate or undue risk.

Note: 2000 character limit.

The benefit to low and moderate income workers of this grant is that it will enable Licensed Nursing Assistants and Licensed
Practical Nurses to upgrade their skills and obtain higher level employment as Registered Nurses. The starting wage for LNAs
at LRGHealthcare is $11.25 per hour and for LPNs it is $17.97. For RNs the starting wage is $21.11 and increases with
seniority.

Medical insurance is provided for all full-time employees of LRG. The cost varies depending on the type of coverage elected by
the employee (single vs. family). For single coverage, the cost to the employee of full medical insurance is $55 bi-weekly and
the cost to LRG is $342 biweekly. Dental insurance costs the employee nothing but costs LRG $15.67 biweekly. In addition,
LRG offers long-term disability insurance and life insurance which provides a benefit worth 60% of the biweekly gross pay of
the employee. LRG's retirement plan provides the employee with 7% of the first $25,000 and 3% of earnings above $25,000
regardless of the employee's own contribution.

This will be a grant to a non-profit, not a loan. The CDBG funds will be disbursed upon receipt of a purchase order from the
company supplying the SimMan 3G Manikins



EDE Analysis

The project does not provide undue enrichment to any of the owners or private investors; and
The analysis makes an assessment of the risk of the project.

Note: 2000 character limit.

Since this is a grant that will benefit a public educational institution and a non-profit organization, this project will not provide any
undue enrichment to any individuals. LRGHealthcare is governed by a Board of Directors and the College is part of the
Community College System of NH.

Non-CDBG Project Financing

Lastly, the EDE should determine what form the non-CDBG project financing will take and what are the terms/structure of the other project
financing. The EDE must also determine that all sources of financing are firmly committed. The business is required to provide the evidence of
the non-CDBG match commitment, in whatever form it will take: Bank financing, Owners Equity, etc.

Note: 2000 character limit.

As stated above, the State of New Hampshire appropriated $6.4 million for the addition to the College's Center for Arts &
Technology (C.A.T. Building) in the 2012-13 biennial budget. There is no other funding committed for the project at this time,
but there is a gap of $350,000 for furnishings and equipment for the new addition.

Evidence of the EDEs Commitment to the Project
Resolution of the EDE Loan Committee or Board and Commitment Letter

A resolution of the EDE Loan Committee or Board with regard to the structure of the deal (attach signed resolution to EDE Attachments
component). The proposed structure of the financing arrangement offered by the EDE may vary based upon the use of the CDBG funds:

(a)If a line of credit: the EDE should discuss the interest rates, fees, form of set up and disbursement; or

(b)If long term financing: the EDE should define the terms of the transaction such as interest rates, amortization schedules, repayment
schedules, collateral, guarantees, and balloons which will capitalize the Revolving Loan Fund; or

(c)For both short or long-term financing, the resolution should also indicate what is the commitment of the Board of the EDE, with regard to the
Revolving Loan Fund, i.e. how will repayments of principal and interest be apportioned to the RLF; or

(d)If the project involves leasing property to the businesses, describe how those leases compare with the regional rental market.

In addition, the EDE must provide its own commitment letter to the Business, which will define the terms of the loan being proposed (attach a
signed copy of the commitment letter in the EDE Attachments component). Acceptance of these terms by the Business is required.

Note: 2000 character limit.
This is not applicable because no loan will be provided in this case.
Evidence of the EDEs Need for the Project

Project Effect

The EDE should provide a written description with regard to how the project will affect its organization with regard to support from the project for
any of the following: (a) the cost of EDE staff, current and/or additional; (b) the cost of overhead; (c) toward a contribution in the form of
capitalization of the Loan Loss Reserve of the EDE; and (d) toward the capitalization of the RLF beyond principle payments.

As evidence of the above, again a letter of commitment from the EDE should be provided.

Note: 2000 character limit.

There is no EDE involvement in this project - no loan is being made in this case.

Project Description



Project Description

Define and describe the project to be supported by CDBG funds. Discuss acquisitions, renovation, capital equipment purchases, working
capital, etc. This should provide a description of the needs of the business and how this proposal will satisfy those needs. This should include a
project timetable. This likely will require consultation with the EDE.

Note: 6000 character limit.

For a project which involves Real Estate Development, in support of a business, additional information with regard to property valuation must
be provided and information on local rates for rentals of commercial property must be provided.

For a project which involves Public Infrastructure improvements, in support of a business, additional information must be provided which
documents the current debt outstanding and the debt capacity of the municipality.

To save or edit this form, click Save or Edit button in the upper right hand corner of the screen. Need more help? Click Help in the upper left
hand corner of the screen.

The addition to the College's Center for Arts & Technology (C.A.T. Building) will provide modern lab space for the nursing
program, as well as for fire sciences, biology, chemistry and physics. Current lab spaces for all programs are not up to present-
day standards so this addition is a much-needed improvement to the campus, especially since more and more students are
starting at the community college but later matriculating at four-year institutions in order to save money on their higher
education.

The current lab space for the nursing program is barely a real lab - it consists of a few beds lined up along the walls of the
nursing classroom. There is no physical separation between the classroom space and the "lab" and the equipment that the
students have to learn on is very basic. The C.A.T. Building addition will provide separate nursing lab space that is modeled
after a real hospital setting, with nurse station, storage, computer control area and individual patient rooms. The CDBG funds
being requested in this grant will be used to purchase the high-tech training manikins that are the hallmark of any high-quality
nursing program today. When students enter the new nursing lab, they will be able to have a real-life simulation experience with
training manikins that exhibit human symptoms and use of the same technology they will be expected to use on the job.

Quality training for nurses is a regional priority because 48% of the registered nurses at LRGHealthcare are age 50 and older,
which means that in the next 10 to 15 years almost half of the nursing staff will retire. In addition, the Lakes Region is
significantly older than the state as a whole. The median age in the Lakes Region is 45.2 versus 41.1 statewide. The NH Office
of Energy and Planning predicted that by 2030, 36% of Belknap County's population will be 65 or older. These trends combined
will create a nursing crisis in our region; at a time when the demand for skilled nurses will be higher than ever, we will have

lost a large segment of our most experienced nurses. For this reason, it is wise for the College and LRG to invest in the nursing
program to ensure that we can produce enough new nurses to meet this demand.

Implementation Schedule

Activity Start Date Status Completion Date
Construction 06/18/2012 Scheduled 01/14/2013
Equipment Installation 01/04/2013 Scheduled 01/18/2013

. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Salaries and Benefits
Row Name % on Project CDBG Non-CDBG
0% $0 $0

0% $0 $0



0% $0 $0

Totals $0 $0

Grant Administrator (Consultant)

Row CDBG Non-CDBG
Grant Administrator $0 $5,000
Operations
Row CDBG Non-CDBG
Rent $0 $0
Telephone $0 $0
Utilities $0 $0
Supplies $0 $0
Equipment $0 $0
Printing $0 $0
Advertising $0 $0
Travel $0 $0
Legal $0 $0
Audit $0 $0
Other $0 $0
Grant Writing Fee $2,000 $0
Totals $2,000 $0

Column Definition- Fields

Other- uses 1 State of New Hampshire

Other- uses 2 Other grants & contributions TBD
Other 1

Other 2

Other 3

Other 4

other 5

Other 6



Project Sources and Uses

Bank Equity
Row CDBG . . . . Other 1 Other 2 Other 3 Total
Financing Financing

Real Property

- $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Acquisition
Site
Improvement $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
s
Construction $0 $0 $0  $5,800,000 $0 $0  $5,800,000
p .
fofessional $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fees
c .
onstruction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Financing
P t
.e rma.nen $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Financing
Soft Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Leasehold
Improvement $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
s
Training $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Machinery/Eq
uipment/Furni $138,000 $0 $0 $150,000 $212,000 $0 $500,000
shings
Worki
orsing $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital
Non-Profit
Delivery $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Costs
Other $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CDBG Admi
min $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Costs
Totals $140,000 $0 $0  $5,950,000 $212,000 $0  $6,302,000

Sources
Bank Equit
Row CDBG . . . qf“ y Other 1 Other 2 Other 3 Total
Financing Financing
Sources

. $0 $0 $0  $5,950,000 $0 $0  $5,950,000
Committed



Sources

) $140,000 $0 $0 $0 $212,000 $0 $352,000
Pending

Totals $6,302,000

Sources and Uses - Assumptions

This is a list of the total amounts contributed by each source and the list how those funds will be used. Below is a listing of the eligible uses of
CDBG funds and the requirements to keep in mind when documenting the cost of use:

1. Real Property Acquisition. All acquisition costs must be verified by submitting a recent appraisal by a certified, independent, qualified
appraiser.

2. Construction, Renovation, Site Work. All costs for construction of new buildings, building additions, renovation/rehabilitation of buildings,
leasehold improvements, installation or upgrade of infrastructure, and site work must be certified by a professional engineer or architect.
Estimates should presume the applicability of Davis-Bacon Wage Rates.

3. Machinery, Equipment. Costs for the purchase of fixed machinery and capital equipment having a useful life of greater than five years must
be verified by written independent cost estimates from vendors or other knowledgeable third party sources.

4. Public Infrastructure. Costs incurred by the Municipality to install or construct the necessary infrastructure to support an economic
development project (i.e., sewer, water lines, roads). Costs must be supported by engineering estimates.

5. Working Capital. Costs to maintain the general operations of the business. These must be supported by audited financial statements.

6. Other (including Training). Eligible costs include expenses for professional engineering, architectural, educational, and legal services, moving
of property and equipment, and relocation (where displacement is necessary Please see Exhibit D). All estimates must be supported by
independent quotations for services.

7. Non-Profit Delivery Costs. Other eligible administrative costs such as the delivery costs to the Economic Development Entity are direct
program charges.

To save or edit this form, click Save or Edit button in the upper right hand corner of the screen. Need more help? Click Help in the upper left
hand corner of the screen. Note: 5000 character limit.
$138,000 in CDBG funds will be used to pay for the
majority of the cost of the SimMan 3G Manikins,
Sources and Uses assumptions which is estimated at $183,785 as per the vendor
guote from Laerdal Medical Corporation, which is
included as an attachment.

Job Creation

Job " Starting ) Educational
) ) HUD Category # of Positions Time
Title/Function Wages/hr. Regs.



Nursing
certification by
the State of NH.
These five
registered
nurses will be
people who
move up from
licensed nursing
assistant (LNA)
or licensed
practical nurse
(LPN) positions
as a result of
Registered 3-Technicians 5 21.11 Full up.gradmg their
Nurse skills at Lakes
Region
Community
College using
the new
equipment. This
grant will benefit
low and
moderate
income LNAs
and LPNs to
receive training
that enable them
to earn higher

wages.

Maintenance (at
Lakes Region 9-Service

) 1 13.0 Full None
Community Workers
College)
Administrative
Assistant (at LR 5-Office and High school

. . 1 15.0 Full )
Community Clerical diploma

College)

Job Creation/Retention Narrative

New Employment



Describe the net employment increase (in full-time, annualized terms) resulting from the project. This information must be very specific with
regard to all the wages and benefits being provided to the Business employees.

If the project involves job retention, the data must be supplemented by the submission of the business payroll and Income Surveys of all the
affected persons. (See "business attachments")

Describe the newly created positions by title, occupational type (and functions performed), the expected work hours, and the entry level wage
for each of these positions.

Note: 2000 character limit.

This project will address a priority workforce development need in the Lakes Region: providing high quality nurse training to
produce more registered nurses (RNs) to replace the large number of experienced RNs that will retire over the next decade.
Five of the jobs created in this project are skills upgrades of current licensed nursing assistants (LNASs) or licensed practical
nurses (LPNs). The idea is for these workers to complete training at Lakes Region Community College and then become full-
time RNs, which greatly enhances their earning power. The entry level wage for RNs at LRGHealthcare if $21.11.

The other two jobs will be net new jobs created at the College as a result of the expansion. One will be a maintenance worker
with an entry level wage of approximately $13 per hour. The other will be an administrative assistant position with an entry level
wage of approximately $15 per hour.

New Employment Details

Describe which of the above positions will be made available to persons from LMI families;
Describe hiring requirements for those positions, i.e. education, experience, licenses.

Note: 2000 character limit.

RNs are licensed by the state and at minimum must have an associates degree in nursing and pass the state licensure exam.
Many LNAs and LPNs are persons from low and moderate income families. The idea behind this project is to provide quality
convenient training so that LNAs and LPNs will get their associate of nursing degree at the College and then become full-time
RNs, which will greatly enhance their opportunity to earn a higher wage. While the entry level wage for RNs is $21.11 as stated
above, the mean wage for RNs in the Laconia area is $30.15 so there is substantial room for advancement after obtaining an
RN position.

There is no special education or training required for the maintenance worker position at the College. The administrative
assistant position will require a minimum of a high school diploma. Both of these positions will be made available to persons
from low and moderate income families.

Employment Benefits

Describe all the benefits that the business will offer to these new employees that will result from the project. All the following possible benefits
should be described:

Medical and dental and vision coverage;

The level of the above insurance coverage;

All leave provided - vacation, sick, holiday, bereavement insurance coverage provided life insurance, short and long term disability;
Provision for retirement through a tax exempt savings plan or Pension;

Provision for child care;

Other employee benefits.

Describe the training that will be provided by the business for these new employees.

Note: 2000 character limit.



Full-time RNs at LRGHealthcare receive a comprehensive benefits package, which includes:

- Full medical and dental insurance (employee pays approximately $55 biweekly for single coverage)

- Short and long-term disability insurance where the benefit is 60% of gross pay (employee pays $15 biweekly for the short-
term, nothing for the long-term)

- Life insurance where the benefit is equal to one year's salary (no cost to employee)

- Optional life insurance at a reduced rate to employee ranging from $1.16 to $3.46 per paycheck depending on level of
coverage selected

- Defined contribution pension: 7% of first $25,000 in earnings plus 3% of earnings above $25,000 (increases to 4% after 10
years of service)

- Retirement savings plan

- Paid vacation, sick, holiday

|
Threshold Instructions and Checklist

Statutory Requirements (All CDBG Applications)

Part | Public Noticing Requirements
Ten-calendar-day notice period met

Published in a newspaper of general circulation
Electronic or scanned tear sheet is uploaded

Documentation that Public Notice was posted in three public
places is uploaded

Documentation includes dates and places posted
Documentation is signed and dated by municipality

Held prior to governing bodys final action regarding the filing of
the application

Public Notice states:

Specific grounds for the public hearing

Date of the public hearing

Time of the public hearing

Location of the public hearing

Part Il Public Hearing Requirements

Minutes of public hearing are uploaded

Handout was made available (and noted in minutes)

General explanation of CDBG was given (and noted in minutes)
Views of the Citizens were solicited (and noted in minutes)

Range of possible community development activities were
described (and noted in minutes)

Amount of funds available was stated (and noted in minutes)

Submittal of CDBG application for proposed project was
approved (and noted in minutes)



Chief Executive Officer (or designee) was authorized to execute
any and all documents related to this CDBG project

Part lll Application Certification and HUD Disclosure Report
Application Certification Form complete, signed, and uploaded
HUD Disclosure Report complete, signed, and uploaded

Will project have a negative environmental impact on the project
area? If yes, please contact CDFA immediately to discuss. (603)
226-2170.

Part IV Residential Antidisplacement and Relocation Assistance Plan (RARA)
Plan submitted and uploaded

Certification of compliance with the Uniform Relocation Act (URA)
and Section 104(d) of the Act, as amended

Minutes of the hearing at which the Plan was adopted are
uploaded

Part V Housing and Community Development Plan (HCDP)
Current (HCDP) is uploaded and is less than three years old
Plan is referenced in the narrative of the application

Plan identifies community development and housing needs which
currently exist or are anticipated to exist in the next three years

Plan identifies short- and long-term objectives which are
consistent with federal and state objectives

Plan states that as a matter of policy, the municipality will
minimize the involuntary displacement of households from their
neighborhoods

Minutes of the hearing at which the Plan was adopted are
uploaded

Statutory public hearing requirements have been met
Statutory public notice requirements have been met

Date HCD Plan was adopted/readopted

Joint Applicant Threshold Checklist

Statutory Requirements (All CDBG Applications)

Part | Public Noticing Requirements
Ten-calendar-day notice period met

Published in a newspaper of general circulation
Electronic or scanned tear sheet is uploaded

Documentation that Public Notice was posted in three public
places is uploaded

Documentation includes dates and places posted



Documentation is signed and dated by municipality

Held prior to governing bodys final action regarding the filing of
the application

Public Notice states:

Specific grounds for the public hearing

Date of the public hearing

Time of the public hearing

Location of the public hearing

Part Il Public Hearing Requirements

Minutes of public hearing are uploaded

Handout was made available (and noted in minutes)

General explanation of CDBG was given (and noted in minutes)
Views of the Citizens were solicited (and noted in minutes)

Range of possible community development activities were
described (and noted in minutes)

Amount of funds available was stated (and noted in minutes)

Submittal of CDBG application for proposed project was
approved (andnoted in minutes)

Chief Executive Officer (or designee) was authorized to execute
any and all documents related to this CDBG project

Part Ill Application Certification and HUD Disclosure Report
Application Certification Form complete, signed, and uploaded
HUD Disclosure Report complete, signed, and uploaded

Will project have a negative environmental impact on the project
area? If yes, please contact CDFA immediately to discuss. (603)
226-2170.

Part IV Residential Antidisplacement and Relocation Assistance Plan (RARA)
Plan submitted and uploaded

Certification of compliance with the Uniform Relocation Act (URA)
and Section 104(d) of the Act, as amended

Minutes of the hearing at which the Plan was adopted are
uploaded

Part V Housing and Community Development Plan (HCDP)
Current (HCDP) is uploaded and is less than three years old
Plan is referenced in the narrative of the application

Plan identifies community development and housing needs which
currently exist or are anticipated to exist in the next three years

Plan identifies short- and long-term objectives which are
consistent with federal and state objectives



Plan states that as a matter of policy, the municipality will
minimize the involuntary displacement of households from their
neighborhoods

Minutes of the hearing at which the Plan was adopted are
uploaded

Statutory public hearing requirements have been met
Statutory public notice requirements have been met

Date HCD Plan was adopted/readopted

Thresholds Attachments



Attachment

1. A PDF of the original
newspaper tear sheet,
evidencing the
newspapers name and
date published

2. Documentation that
the Public Notice has
been posted in three (3)
places within the
community (or proposed
project area if County is
applying), and names of
posted areas listed,
signed and dated by
municipality

3. Minutes of public
hearing

7. Copies of
Intergovernmental
Agreements related to
the application, that
addresses which
municipality will be
administering the grant
if awarded .

8. Completed HUD
Disclosure Form 2880

9. Adopted RARA Plan

Description File Name File Size

The public hearing

notice was published in

The Citizen on February

24,2012 and in The Tear sheet - public
Laconia Daily Sun on hearing notice.pdf
February 21, 2012. Tear

sheets from both are

attached.

Legal notice as posted,
certified by Debra
Shackett, County
Administrator.

Legal Notice -
certified.pdf

1KB

Minutes from all three

public hearings

regarding this CDBG

application held on

March 7, 2012, as well

as minutes of meeting  minutes - 3-7-12 public
of County hearing.pdf
Commissioners where

the RARA Plan was

adopted and the

application was

authorized.

1 KB

1KB

1KB

RARA Plan with regards RARA - adopted &
to this specific project.  signed.pdf

1KB

Type

pdf

pdf

pdf

pdf



10. Current HCD Plan
less than 3 years old

11. Most recent Audit
from Grantee

12. Most recent Audit
from Subrecipient

13. Certification that all
planning and zoning
requirements have been
met

14. Map of proposed
project site or service
area

Housing & Community
Development Plan
HCDP Belknap -
adopted by Belknap 1KB
. Adopted 1-26-11.pdf
County Commissioners
in January 2012.

Audited financials for

Belknap County Belknap County Audit
12/31/10, which is the ~ 12-31-2010.pdf

most recent available.

1KB

Attached is the 2007
audit of the community
college system, which is
the most recent
available. The
Community College
System of NH recently
separated from the
state, which had only
conducted an audit of
the community college's
on an intermittent basis,
based on funding
available and problems 2007 Audit of Regional
that the Legislative Technical Colleges.pdf
Budget Office identified
as priorities. Since
separating from the
state, the Community
College System of NH
has worked to develop
an annual audit plan
and beginning in fiscal
year 2012, a complete
Financial and Single
Audit will be done by an
outside agency every
year.

1KB

Satellite image/map
showing the site where .
" Site Map - Zoomed
the addition to the 1 KB
In.pdf
College's C.A.T.
Building will be.

pdf

pdf

pdf

pdf



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Project Specific Thresholds

Most recent Audit from Grantee is included

Most recent Audit from Subrecipient is included

All planning and zoning requirements have been met (letter
included, with approval date)

Map of proposed project site or service area is included

Will this project have a Negative Environmental Impact on the
project area

Economic Development Thresholds

Commitment to job creation: project shall create /retain at least
one (1) job for each $20,000 of CDBG funds.

Commitment to funds requested: at least 60% of jobs
created/retained are available to low and moderate income
persons

Firmly committed match funds at a minimum of 1:1 ratio
Eligibility of project activities are:

Acquisition, construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of
commercial or industrial buildings

Purchase of machinery and equipment

Employee training

Acquisition of land

Public improvements

Working capital

Microenterprise development grant requirements

Firmly committed match ratio of 1:2

Lending and technical assistance must be available to recipients

One (1) eligible beneficiary served for each $5,000 requested

EDE Thresholds Checklist

Does the EDE implement written, adopted underwriting and
lending guidelines? Does it balance its portfolio and N/A
systematically weigh the risk factors for individual loans

Does the EDE successfully screen potential borrowers and guide

. . N/A
them to appropriate finance sources

Does the EDE implement written, adopted loan origination,
closing, disbursement and collection systems? Does it use a N/A
professional accounting system

Does the EDE use an attorney for loan closings N/A



Does the EDE collect payments in a timely manner N/A

Does the EDE have an established, capitalized loan loss reserve  N/A

EDE Threshold Attachments



Attachment Description File Name

1. The EDE's name and
a copy of the Articles of
Incorporation

2. Bylaws and/or
Charter of the EDE

3. The Revolving Loan
Fund (RLF) rules,
regulations, and
guidelines

4. Guidelines used by
the EDE with regard to
Loan
Approvals/Documentati
on

5. Names and resumes
of the EDE's board
members and staff

6. Names and resumes
of the members of the
EDE's Loan Committee

7. Documentation of any
economic development
certifications held by
staff

8. A listing of all
municipalities in the
EDE service area

9. A list of CDBG
projects completed

10. A list of non-CDBG
grant awards (RBEG,
RBOG, IRP,EDA, DES,
et.al.) with project name
and amounts

11. The amount of job
creation achieved
through efforts of EDE,
and percent LMI

12. Comprehensive and
current financial reports,
i.e. the annual audit,
which shows assets,
liabilities and net fund
position of the EDE

File Size Type

1 KB

1 KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1 KB

1 KB

1KB

1KB

1KB



13. A comprehensive
list of loans funded by
the EDE, over the past
five years, with the
funding sources
identified (CDBG, RLF,
etc.)

14. A listing of
outstanding notes
receivable with an
aging

15. A comprehensive
list of all real estate
projects developed
through the EDE

16. A comprehensive
list of the outstanding
balance in the RLF of
the EDE

17. Written, adopted
underwriting, lending
and approval guidelines

18. Procedures for
systematic
measurement of risk
factors, ongoing review
of total portfolio risk,
and for periodic
reporting to the Board of
Directors

19. Procedures for
capitalization of Loan
Loss Reserve and
outstanding LLR
balance

20. Written, adopted
closing, disbursement
and collection
procedures

21. Description of the
loan accounting system
used by the EDE

22. Current contract
with another entity to
manage all lending
activities

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1 KB

1KB

1KB



Financial Indicator Threshold Checklist

Are days receivable nearly equal to payment terms? (Cdfa 310.15

1= Neutral
(b1))
Are days payable nearly equal to payment terms? (Cdfa 310.15

ys pay vea pay ( 1= Neutral

(b2))
Are payables less than inventory? (Cdfa 310.15 (b3)) 1= Neutral
Are days accrual about equal to the payroll cycle? (Cdbg 310.15

1= Neutral
(b4))
Are taxes current? (Cdbg 310.15 (b5)) 1= Neutral
Are days inventory nearly equal to the inventory cycle? (Cdfa

1= Neutral
310.15 (b6))
Are there notes receivable? (Cdfa 310.15 (b7)) 1= Neutral
Are there notes payable or subordinated officer debt? (Cdfa

1= Neutral
310.15 (b8))
Is there evidence that the officers debt is truly subordinated?

1= Neutral
(Cdfa 310.15 (b9))
Is the Debt/Equity ratio reasonable? (Cdfa 310.15 (b10)) 2= Strong
Are retained earnings positive? (Cdfa 310.15 (b11)) 2= Strong
Are sales increasing? (Cdfa 310.15 (b12)) 1= Neutral
Is there a stable Cost-of-Goods-Sold to Sales ratio? (Cdfa 310.15

1= Neutral
(b13))
Is there a stable G+A costs to Sales ratio? (Cdfa 310.15 (b14)) 1= Neutral
Is Officer compensation reasonable? (Cdfa 310.15 (b15)) 2= Strong

Is the operating profit to sales ratio stable? (Cdfa 310.15 (b16)) 1= Neutral

Is the earnings before taxes to sales ratio stable? (Cdbg 310.15

(b17)) 1= Neutral

Expenses (Officer compensation, Rent, Interest expense and

Depreciation) are controlled and determined at the discretion of

the ownership of the business and are thereby available to be 1= Neutral
reduced to create more capacity to pay for additional debt. (Cdbg

310.15 (b18))

Total 21

Business Attachments



Attachment

Resumes for principals
and officers

Detailed personal
financial statement for
the principals of the
business

Business Plan

Employee personnel
manual

Financial statements for
at least the last three
years

Projected financial
statements for 3to 5
years forward

Financial information for
affiliated companies

Independent appraisals
for any real estate to be
acquired as a result of
the project

Independent appraisals
or vendor quotations for
machinery, equipment,
or inventory to be
acquired for the project

Project proforma that
shows cash flow status

Firm letters of
commitment from all
external funding
sources for the project

Documentation of
equity/internal sources
of funds

A letter of commitment
to create/retain the jobs

Description

LRG's 2011 Annual
Report.

Excerpt from LRG's
2011 audit.

Letter from LRGH
committing to promote
five LNAs or LPNs after
they complete training
at the College.

File Name

LRGH 2011 Annual
Report.pdf

LRGH Audit 2011.pdf

Job Creation Letter -
LRGH.pdf

File Size

1 KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

Type

pdf

pdf

pdf



Corporate resolution
certifying business's
commitment both to the
project and to the job
creation

Purchase & Sales
Agreement or Lease
Agreement

Agreement with partner
service agency

Certificate of Good
Standing from the New
Hampshire Secretary of

1KB

1KB

1KB

1KB

Current Payroll

Income Survey for
Affected Employees

Calculation and
explanation of cash
value of the CDBG
assistance to the
business (to be
prepared by CPA or
Certified Economic
Development
Professional, per CDFA
307.01(h)(3)

State
currentpayroll
1KB
1KB
Other Attachments
File Name Description

Vendor quote for training equipment to

Vendor Quote - manikins.pdf

be purchased with CDBG funds.

Municipal Certification



To the best of my knowledge, the data in this application is true and correct, and this application submittal has been authorized by the
governing body of the municipality. The municipality will comply with all federal and state laws, rules, regulations and requirements, including
those in PART Cdfa 300 - CDBG Administrative Rules.

Furthermore, | certify that:

The municipality affirmatively furthers fair and affordable housing; and Where applicable, the proposed project is consistent with the
municipal master plan, the Housing and Community Development Plan (HCDP), the Residential Antidisplacement & Relocation
Assistance (RARA) Plan and that all planning and zoning requirements have been met; and Where applicable, the municipality shall
provide adequate funds to operate and maintain the public facility or improvement after the completion of the project.

Certification Yes
Name of Designated CEO/Authorized Official Debra Shackett
Title of Designated CEO County Administrator

PDF of Signed Municipal CEO Certification



Edward D. Phi} .
BELKNAP COUNTY COMMISSIONERS war iilpot, Jr

Chairman
34 County Drive Laconia
Laconia, NH (3246
Phone (603) 527-5400 John 1. Thomas
Fax (603) 527-5409 Vice-Chairman
Belmont

Stephen H. Nedeau
Clerk

Commissioners Meeting Minutes Meredith

March 7. 2012

Commissioner Philpot called the Belknap County Commissioners meeting to order at 5:41 PM on the
above date at 34 County Drive, Laconia, NH and started with the pledge of allegiance.

In Attendance: Commissioners Edward D, Philpot Jr., John H. Thomas, Stephen H. Nedeau and County
Administrator, Debra Shackett.

CDBG Public Hearing: A handout was made available. Conunissioner Philpot opened up the public
hearing on the CDBG Economic Development Grant Application for Equipment for the Lakes Region
Community College Nursing Program at 5:42 PM. Executive Director Carmen Lorentz explained the
project and grant process. Belknap County is considering applying for an Economic Development grant
for up to $500,000 to purchase training equipment for the Lakes Region Community College’s Nursing
Program. Commissioner Philpot asked for public comment. There was none. The public hearing was
closed at 5:44 PM.

Commissioner Philpot opened another public hearing at 5:44 on the Housing & Community Development
Plan. Ms. Lorentz explained the plan that outlines community development goals and objectives. This
grant will support workforce development in Belknap County by providing better training equipment for
nurses in training at the College. Commissioner Philpot asked for public comment. There was none. The
public hearing was closed at 5:45 PM. '

Commissioner Philpot opened a public hearing at 5:45 on the Residential Anti-displacement & Relocation
Plan. Ms. Lorentz explained that in January 2012, Belknap County adopted a policy that states the
County will comply with federal relocation assistance laws if any displacement is caused by a federally
funded project the County is involved with. Commissioner Philpot asked for public comment. There was
none. The public hearing was closed at 5:46 PM.

The Commissioners then opened their regular meeting and made the following motions: M/Thomas,
S/Nedeau to approve submittal of a CDBG Economic Development Grant for up to $500,000 for the
purpose of purchasing training equipment for Lakes Region Community College’s nursing program.
Unanimous. Motion carries. M/Nedeau, S/ Nedeau to authorize the County Administrator to execute
any and all documents necessary to effectuate the potential CDBG contract. Unanimous. Motion
carries. M/Thomas, S/Nedeau to approve the adoption of the Residential Anti-displacement &
Relocation Plan with regards to the purchase of training equipment for the College’s nursing program and
to certify that there will be no displacement that results from this. Unanimous. Motion carries,
Commissioners will sign the Residential Anti-displacement & Relocation Plan and Administrator
Shackett will sign the document certifying the posting requirements were met for this CDBG request.

Approval of minutes: M/Nedeau, S/Thomas to approve the 2/22/12 minutes. Unanimous. Motion
carries.




Administrative Report: Ms. Shackett reported that the Town of Barnstead will vote on police services at
their town meeting. Debra has been working on contract negotiations and employee evaluations. The
Commissioners need a new date to schedule their goal setting meeting. Commissioner Philpot will send
some dates to Ms. Shackett to coordinate. Ms. Shackett informed the board that the capital projects
subcommittee met last Friday 3/2/12.

Agreement/contract with Strafford County for inmates: Ms. Shackett recommended that the
Commissioners approve a contract with Strafford County to house inmates due to overcrowding in our
jail. M/Nedeau, S/Thomas approve based on the recommendation of the County Administrator to sign the
agreement with Strafford County as outlined. Unanimous. Motion carries.

Commissioners Committee reports: Commissioner Thomas reported that David Haley will be stepping
down as the Chair for Economic Devolvement council. He would like to acknowledge his hard work over
the years and particularly 2011 as a very challenging year for the organization. BCEDC annual meeting
will be 3/29/12 at 4:15 PM. Lastly, BCEDC strategic plan will be unveiled at the annual meeting. The
Cooperative Extension has out together an organization plan based on the 40% cut buy the legislature of
their budget. They will propose sharing of duties, etc. with other counties. Administrator Shackett has a
meeting the UNH Coop Administrator Sue Cagle next week to discuss this matter and will report back to
the Commissioners with results. Commissioner Nedeau reported that the Airport Authority will have a
meeting next week 3/14/12, but he is not able to go due to the fact that he has town meeting that night.

Adjourn: With no further business to discuss, M/Thomas, S/Nedeau to adjourn at 6:10 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Qﬂ\/ Oq aéOVLﬂQ

Angela A. Bovill, Administrative Assistant




The Citizen

CITIZEN PUBLISHING COMPANY
171 Fair Street
Laconia, NH 03246
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Page 10 — THT LACONIA DAILY SUN, Tuesday, February 21,2012

WATERFRONT from page one
for less than the assessed value of the
property. Meanwhile, 13 of the proper-
ties that sold for more than $400,000,
including those sold for more than
$1-million, fetched more than their
assessed values and only one changed
for less than 90-percent of its assessed
value.

Since 2007, when the total asscssed
valuation of the town peaked at
$1,631-billion it has declined by
$108.7-million, or by 6.7-percent.
By contrast, the total assessed valu-
ation of Laconia has slipped from
$2,161-billion to $1,87-billion, a drop
of 13.5-percent,

SHAKER from page one

One semi-finalists is Stacy Buckley,
the current superintendent of SAU
19, which serves Goffstown, Dunbar-
ton and New Boston.

The second is Trevor Ebel the cur-
rent Superintendent of SAU 63, which
serves Wilton and Lyndeborough.

“Bach of the finalists has significant
experience of district-level admin-
istration and is fully certified as a
superintendent of schools by the New
Hampshire Department of Education,”
said the statement of the subcommittee.

Right now the district is being man-
aged by interim Superintendent Tom
Haley - the retired Superintendent
of SAU 53, which is Pembrolke, Allen-
stown, Epsom, Deerfield and Chiches-
ter. Haley is a Belmont resident.

Haley took over after former Super-
intendent Mark A. Blount resigned

* Expres 272007 Vi coupon. Not 5 be
combined vk orer offers. Doss nol include
anand gralaly  LD3

Route 3, Winnisquam
. wwwihalimar-resort.com * 524-1984

aburptly in late September of 2011
after what he described as “irrecon-
cilable differences (with the School
Board) in the educational philesophy
being applied in the district.”

Blount had been with the district
for just over a year and had replaced
former long-time Superintendent
Mark Cozort who retired from New
Hampshire to become the Superinten-
dent of the Nantacket, Mass. School
District.

In a telephone interview yesterday,
Haley said the district is working on
dates for a community forum and
members of the School Board will be
visiting each prospective candidate’s
current district.

Haley said he expects a final deci-
sion will be made and anncunced by
the entire School Board on March 22,

— Gail Ober
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Public Hearings Notice

Belknap County
Community Development Block Grant Application

The Belknap County Commissioners will hold three consecutive public
hearings on March 7, 2012, at 5:30 pm at the Belknap County Complex at
34 County Drive in Laconia, NH to hear public comment on a Gommunity
Development Block Grant ({CDBG) economic development grant application
to the NH Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA) for
Equipment

for the Lakes Region Community College Nursing Program. Up to $500,000
annually is available on a competitiveness basis for housing/public facilities,
economic development and emergency activities that directly benefit low
and moderate income persons. Up to $12,000 is available for feasibility
study grants. The proposal to be heard includes:

1. A proposed economic development grant for up to $500,000 in CDBG
funds. The funds will be used to purchase training equipment for the
Lakes Region Community College Nursing Program.

2. Review and Adoption or Re-adoption of Belknap County’s Housing and
Community Development Plan.

3. Review and Adoption of Belknap County's Residential Anti-
displacement and Relocation Plan.

Interested persons are invited to attend and comment on the proposed
application and planning documents. Please contact the Belknap County
Administrator's Office at 527-5400 five days in advance if you need
assistance to attend or participate in the hearing. Anyone wishing to submit
written comments should address them to the Belknap County
Administrator at 34 County Drive, Laconia NH 03246.

YouTube planning to create 25 hours of
programming a day for phones, tablets, etc.

CULVER CITY, Calif. (AP) — You-
Tube is enlisting Hollywood’s help to
reach a generation of viewers more
familiar with smartphones than TV
remotes.

The online video giant is aiming to
create 25 hours of programming per
day with the help of some of the top
names in traditional TV. The Google-
owned site is spreading its wealth
among producers, directors, and other
filmmakers, using a $100 million pot
of seed money it committed last fall.
The fund represents YouTube'’s larg-
est spending on original content so far.

YouTube believes itis laying ground-
work for the future. While the number
of traditional TV watchers has leveled
off in recent years, more and more
people are watching video on maobile
phones, tablets and computers, espe-
cially the 18- to 34-year-old age demo-
graphic that advertisers covet.

The idea is to create 96 additional
YouTube channels, which are essen-
tially artists’ home pages, where view-
ers can see existing video clips and
click “subscribe” to be notified when
new content goes up.

Well-funded videos by a select roster
of stars are likely to be more watch-
able than the average YouTube fare
of eute cats and webcam monologues.
YouTube is betting that a solid stream
of good content will attract more rev-
enue {rom advertisers, bring viewers
back frequently and bolster its parent
company’s fledgling Web-connected-
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TV platform, Google TV.

The cash has enticed some of TV’s
biggest stars, including “Fast Five”
director Justin Lin, who directs epi-
sodes of “Community;” “CSI” creator
Anthony Zuiker and Nancy Tellem,
the former president of CBS enter-
tainment.

Zuiker is teaming up on a horror
series for YouTube after observing his
own family’s behavior. His three pre-
teen sons spend more time on phones,
iPads and computers than watching
TV these days.

“We want to jointly take the risk with
YouTube and roll the dice on the future,”
Zuiker says. “The old regime is going to
falter because everybody thinks the TV
is the only device that really counts, and
that's just not the case.”

For producers, it's a chance to create
shows that are completely free of
meddling from major studios. They
can also stay relevant with a younger
crowd whose viewing is moving
increasingly online.

Several new channels such as the
extreme sports-focused Network A and
Spanish-language Tutele have launched
already. YouTube hopes to have them all
up and running by this summer.

“This was really about galvaniz-
ing the ecosystem at large,” says Alex
Carloss, global head of original pro-
gramming for YouTube. “We sece the
portfolio (of funded channels) really
representing the best of TV meeting
the best of the Web.”
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Public Hearings Legal Notice
Belknap County, NH
Community Development Block Grant Application

The Belknap County Commissioners will hold three consecutive public hearings
on March 7, 2012, at 5:30 pm at the Belknap County Complex at 34 County Drive
in Laconia, NH to hear public comment on a Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) economic development grant application to the NH Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) for Equipment for the Lakes Region
Community College Nursing Program. Up to $500,000 annually is available on a
competitiveness basis for housing/public facilities, economic development and
emergency activities that directly benefit low and moderate income persons. Up
to $12,000 is available for feasibility study grants. The proposal to be heard
includes:

1. A proposed economic development grant for up to $500,000 in CDBG funds.
The funds will be used to purchase training equipment for the Lakes Region
Community College Nursing Program.

2. Review and Adoption or Re-adoption of Belknap County’s Housing and
Community Development Plan.

3. Review and Adoption of Belknap County's Residential Anti-displacement and
Relocation Plan.

Interested persons are invited to attend and comment on the proposed
application and planning documents. Please contact the Belknap County
Administrator's Office at 527-5400 five days in advance if you need assistance to
attend or participate in the hearing. Anyone wishing to submit written comments
should address them to the Belknap County Administrator at 34 County Drive,
Laconia NH 03246.
Public Posting Places:

e Belknap County Complex

e Belknap County Courthouse — lower level employee entrance

o Belknap County Courthouse — upstairs level hallway

Posted by: ﬁm W
Date Posted: >)// Z//X




Belknap County, NH
RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN
CDBG Economic Development Grant to Purchase Training Equipment for Lakes
Region Community College’s Nursing Program

Every effort will be made to minimize temporary or permanent displacement of persons due
to a CDBG project undertaken by the municipality.

However, in the event of displacement as a result of a federally funded award, Belknap
County, NH will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970, as amended, to any household, regardless of income which is
involuntarily and permanently displaced.

If the property is acquired, but will not be used for low/moderate income housing under
104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, the
displacement and relocation plan shall provide that before obligating and spending funds that
will directly result in such demolition or conversion the municipality will make public and
submit to CDFA the following information:

a. Comparable replacement housing in the community within three (3) years of the
commencement date of the demolition or rehabilitation;

b. A description of the proposed activity;

c. The general location on a map and appropriate number of dwelling units by number of
bedrooms that will be demolished or converted to a use other than as low and moderate
income dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity;

d. A time schedule for the commencement and completion date of the demalition or
conversion;

e. The general location on a map and appropriate number of dwelling units by number of
bedrooms that will be provided as replacement dwelling units;

f.  The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling
units;

g. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a low and
moderate income dwelling unit for at least ten (10) years from the date of initial occupancy;

h. Relocation benefits for all low or moderate income persons shall be provided, including
reimbursement for moving expenses, security deposits, credit checks, temporary housing,
and other related expenses and either:

1. Sufficient compensation to ensure that, at least for five (5) years after being
relocated, any displaced low/moderate income household shall not bear a ratio of shelter
costs to income that exceeds thirty (30) percent, or:

2. If elected by a family, a lump-sum payment equal to the capitalized value of the
compensation available under subparagraph 1. above to permit the household to secure
participation in a housing cooperative or mutual housing association, or a Section 8 certificate
of voucher for rental assistance provided through New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.

i. Persons displaced shall be relocated into comparable replacement housing that is
decent, safe, and sanitary, adequate in size to accommodate the occupants, functionally
equivalent, and in an area not subject to unreasonably adverse environmental conditions;



j. Provide that persons displaced have the right to elect, as an alternative to the benefits in
subparagraph 2. above, to received benefits under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 if such persons determine that it is in their best
interest to do so; and

k. The right of appeal to the executive director of CDFA where a claim for assistance under
subparagraph 2. above, is denied by the grantee. The executive director’s decision shall be
final unless a court determines the decision was arbitrary and capricious.

|. Paragraphs a. through k. above shall not apply where the HUD Field Office objectively
finds that there is an adequate supply of decent, affordable low/moderate income housing in
the area.

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

Belknap County, NH anticipates no displacement or relocation activities will be necessitated
by the purchase of training equipment for Lakes Region Community College’s nursing
program. Should some unforeseen need arise, the County certifies that it will comply with the
Uniform Relocation Act and Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development Act
of 1974, as amended.

Printed Municipal

Date of Adoption:

e: Q}Cu'\ray(o i'p) puf\\(\\dﬂ) <

Title:  Couft Co m,'ssu,u\ Chwir

Signature:,




(Public Hearing 1/26/11)
Adopted

Belknap County, New Hampshire
Housing and Community Development Plan

Belknap County has a nunber of housing and community development needs which have
been identified in regional community planning initiatives; the preference is (o encourage the
attainment of these goals through cooperation with municipalities within the County and regional
entities serving the residents of our County.,

The goals and objectives of this plan are inter-related and reflect general community
planning goals, specific policy objectives and actions (long and short term), consistent with
applicable National Objectives:

. Direct benefit to low and moderate income persons and households;

2. The prevention or elimination of slum and blight; and

3. Elimination of conditions which seriously and inumediately threatens the public

health and welfare,

In addition, the State of New Hampshire has defined its own policy objectives for the
Community Development Program. Consistent with the primary National Objectives, the State
through the NH Community Development Finance Authority works with the non-entitlement
municipalities 1o improve housing, public facilities and/or employment opportunities primarily to
low and moderate income persons or households; recagnizing that the activities shall not benefit
moderate income persons to the exclusion of the low income persons.  Additional State
objectives include:

1. Implementing the housing and community development plan and conforming to local

plans and ordinances;

2. Preserving and promoting existing neighborhoods and village/community centers;

3. Restoring and preserving properties which have historic, cultural, architectural, or

acsthetic value;

4. Solving community problems with long term benefits and innovative solutions;

5. Successfully raising or matching dollars and resources from public and private

sources; and

6. Funding needed projects for which other private or public funding shall not be

available.

Beltknap County, being mindful of these additional State objectives, is likewise respectful
of the rights and vision of each of its member municipalities and will give priority to projects that
have a county-wide or multi-community benefit and address state objectives (4), (3), and (6). The
goals and objectives of the County Plan arc both short and long term.

The County states that it is a matter of policy not o support any activities that would
result in the involuntary displacement of househoids from their neighborhoods, 11 this is
unavoidable, then the County will encourage the sub-recipient to minimize their actions and find
suitable replacement housing.

The adoption of the Housing and Community Development Plan allows the County of
Belknap to become eligible for Community Development Block Grants. This Community
Housing and Development Plan will be revisited for adoption every three years,




GOALS AND OBIJECTIVES

The County of Belknap, embracing a regional perspective, encourages an atmospherg of
cooperation and collaboration among its municipalities and regional entities including businesses
and civic organizations, which is conducive to improving and strengthening the civic and physical
infrastructure.  The County encourages activities that enhance quality of life factors including
safety, affordable housing, childcare, education, health services, and recreation.

The goals that follow, focus on those tasks that are consistent with both National and
State objectives for Housing and Community Development Plans and which the County of
Belknap can most effectively encourage to shape the desired pattern of growth and sustainable
economic opportunity within Lthe region that is ¢lean, non-potluting, and diversified,

GOAL 1: Promote and support the development of a balanced and diverse
regional economy, which uses the region’s natural, man-made, and human
resources, while respecting the limitations of the environment.

Objective 1. Encourage and assist units of local government and the private sector to provide
the basic ingredients necessary for a diversity of employment opportunitics and
the continued economic stability of Belknap County, specifically: properly zoned
facilities, sites and land; infrastructure; trained Jabor foree; wtilities; and
transportation,

Objective 2. Work with conununities as appropriate to encourage full use of existing
commercial/industrial facilities/sites and under-utilized buildings in the region
for a variety of ¢conomic uses, taking advantage of existing services.

Objective 3. Encourage and assist units of local/state government to provide adequate and safe
services, transportation and amenities to enhance the competitive position of the
region’s exisling industries and businesses.

Objective 41 Recognize the strengths and weakness of resource-based economic activities and
encourage fuller use of the region’s resources for environmentally sound
economic pursuits by supporting an economic base, which is ¢lean, non-
potluting, diversified and sustainable,

Objective 5. Encourage the prudent use of natural resources especially waler, timber and
undeveloped land.

Objective 6. Support the role of the Belknap County Economic Development by encouraging
regional economic development activities, such as Belknap County Revolving
Loan Fund, to facilitate appropriate development opportunities that enhance the
standard of Tiving for Belknap County residents.




GOAL 2:

Eneourage municipalities in Belknap County to facilitate adequate,

safe and convenient housing for all age and income groups.

Objective 1;

Objective 2:

Objective 3:

GOAL 3:

Encourage cooperation and collaboration among local government units, state
entities, private developers, and/or non-profit organizations that sirive 1o
diversify housing patterns with a wide range of quality accommodations and
prices including housing for the workforce, the elderly, and the handicapped.

Encourage municipalities to address sustainable housing and growith in their
master plans, which preserve and promote existing neighborhoods and village
centers.,

Encourage full use/occupancy of historic structures 1o retain and enhance their

economic viability and insure that significant historic and architectural sites in
Belknap County will be preserved and maintained.

Promote activities by Belknap County municipalities that protect the

health and safety of County residents and visitors.,

Objective |,

Objective 2,

Objective 3.

GOAL 4:

Collaborate on adequate law enforcement and emergency suppor where and
when a regional approach is cost-effective, reasonable, and appropriate,

Encourage municipalities, individually and collectively, to seek solutions to
problems which pose risks to the safety, health and welfare of residents and
visitors, including bringing drinking water supplies and sewage treatment
facilities into conformity with federal and state standards.

Advocate for a fransportation system, local and regional, that facilitates the
timely movement of people, goods, and services throughout the community while
minimizing traffic congestion and highway blight including initiatives that
benefit persons of lower income, handicapped persons, youth, and the elderly.

Enceurage member municipalities to support efficient and high

quality community facilities, human/social services, and amenities to meet the
existing and future nceds of Belknap County residents and visitors,

Objective 1.

Objective 2.

Objective 3:

Promote and support, as appropriate for County government, the delivery of
human/social services by local, charitable and institutional organizations,

Enceurage outside agencies to periodically review communily services and
tacilities to assess utilization levels, efficiency, and available capacities,

Foster cooperation and collaboration in the business, non-profit, and public sector
to better serve the educational, recreational and leisure needs of the comnnity,
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES

Reporting Entity And Scope

The reporting entity of this audit and audit report is the New Hampshire Department of Regional
Community-Technical Colleges, excluding the Police Standards and Training Council, the
Christa McAuliffe Planetarium, and the New Hampshire Community-Technical Colleges
Foundation. The scope of this audit and audit report includes the financial activity of that portion
of the Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges noted above for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007. Unless otherwise indicated, reference to the Department, System, or
auditee refers to the Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges. Reference to the
CCSNH refers to the Community College System of New Hampshire. The Department was
established as the CCSNH, effective July 17, 2007. Reference to College or Colleges refers to
the colleges within the Department including the college campuses in Berlin, Claremont,
Concord, Laconia, Manchester, Nashua, and Stratham.

Organization

The Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges is established in RSA 188-F:2.
During fiscal year 2007, the Department was a State agency consisting of an Office of the
Commissioner, the New Hampshire Regional Community-Technical Institute in Concord, and
colleges in Berlin, Claremont, Laconia, Manchester, Nashua, and Stratham, and associated oft-
campus programs. Also included in the organization of the Department are the Police Standards
and Training Council and the Christa McAuliffe Planetarium which, as noted above, are not
included in the scope of this audit. A Board of Trustees governs the Department.

At June 30, 2007, the Department had a payroll of 811 full-time, 256 part-time, and 1,181
adjunct faculty employees.

Responsibilities

The Department’s mission states: "The Community College System of New Hampshire will
provide comprehensive, market-driven, accessible, quality programs of higher education and
services that respond to the changing needs of students, businesses and communities."

The Department offers various day and evening educational programs, both degree and
nondegree, at its seven Colleges. Additionally, the Department offers continuing education
courses and provides customized training to businesses.

Funding

The financial activity of the Department is accounted for in the General, Capital Projects, and
Agency Funds of the State of New Hampshire. A summary of the Department’s revenues and



expenditures in the General and Capital Projects Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is
shown in the following schedule.

Summary Of Revenues And Expenditures
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2007

General Capital Projects
Fund Fund Total

Total Revenues $ 58,977,379 $ -0- $ 58,977,379

Total Expenditures 86,794,005 16,434,826 103,228,831
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (27,816,626) (16,434,826) (44,251,452)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Appropriations 27,816,626 16,434,826 44,251,452
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And

Other Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

Prior Audit

The most recent prior financial and compliance audit of the Department of Regional
Community-Technical Colleges was for the nine months ended March 31, 1998. The appendix to
this report on page 61 contains a summary of the current status of the observations contained in
that report. A summary of the prior report can be accessed on-line at
www.gencourt.state.nh.us/Iba/audit.html. A copy of the prior report can be obtained from the
Office of Legislative Budget Assistant, Audit Division, 107 North Main Street, State House
Room 102, Concord, NH 03301-4906.

Audit Objectives And Scope

The primary objective of our audit was to express an opinion on the fairness of the presentation
of the financial statements of the Department for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. As part of
obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we considered the effectiveness of the internal controls in place at the Department
and tested its compliance with certain provisions of applicable State and federal laws, rules,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements. Major accounts or areas subject to our examination
included, but were not limited to, the following:

e Revenues and Expenditures,
e Agency Funds, and
e Student Financial Aid Compliance.

Our report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters, the
related observations and recommendations, our independent auditor's report, the financial
statements, and supplementary information are contained in the report that follows.



Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters

To The Fiscal Committee Of The General Court:

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General and
Capital Projects Funds and Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Student Activity
Accounts of the New Hampshire Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges
(Department) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and have issued our report thereon dated
September 11, 2008, which was qualified, as the financial statements do not constitute a complete
financial presentation of the Department. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Department’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting



principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in Observations No. 1 through
No. 6 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we believe Observations
No. 1 through No. 6 are material weaknesses.

Compliance And Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Department’s compliance with
certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted immaterial instances of
noncompliance which are described in Observations No. 7 and No. 8.

The Department’s response is included with each observation in this report. We did not audit the
Department’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the Department,

others within the Department, and the Fiscal Committee of the General Court and is not intended
to be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Office Of Legislative Budget Assistant

September 11, 2008



Internal Control Comments
Significant Deficiencies — Material Weaknesses

Observation No. 1: Improve Internal Controls

Observation:

The Department has not been proactive in establishing and maintaining effective internal
controls over the financial operations of the Department and Colleges. Deficiencies in internal
controls put the achievement of efficient and effective Department and College operations,
including reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements at risk.

Internal control is defined as a process, effected by an entity’s people, designed to accomplish
specified objectives. The definition is broad, encompassing all aspects of controlling a business,
yet facilitates a directed focus on specific objectives. Internal control consists of five interrelated
components, which are inherent in the way management runs an enterprise. The components are
linked, and serve as criteria for determining whether the system is effective.'

During fiscal year 2007, the internal controls in place over the Department included the general
Statewide controls established by the Department of Administrative Services (DAS). In addition,
the Department was subject to controls inherent in Governor and Council approval of contracts
and the Department’s use of State Treasury, Department of Justice, and other common State
services, including audits by the Office of Legislative Budget Assistant. The internal controls
established and maintained by the Department and Colleges specific to its individual operations
also affect the Department’s and Colleges’ ability to operate in a controlled manner.

The following five observations provide specific examples of significant deficiencies in controls
over financial reporting noted during the audit of the Department’s fiscal year 2007 operations.
The comments are categorized in the five generally recognized interrelated internal control
components of:

Control environment,

Risk assessment,

Control activities,

Information and communication, and
Monitoring.

While the following five observations discuss significant deficiencies that existed in the internal
control operations and structure at the Department and Colleges during fiscal year 2007, it is
important to recognize that Chapter 361 of the Laws of 2007 significantly revised the operating
structure and related controls of the Department and Colleges.

! Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, Internal Control-Integrated Framework,
May 1994, page 13.




Chapter 361 of the Laws of 2007 established the Department as the Community College System
of New Hampshire (CCSNH), a body politic and corporate, effective July 17, 2007. As such,
many of the common State internal controls provided to the Department as a State agency ceased
to be provided to the CCSNH after that date or will only be provided on an interim basis until
June 30, 2009. The elimination of Statewide government controls after June 30, 2009 will
compound the risk to CCSNH operations resulting from the lack of effective Department-based
internal controls observed during the course of the audit.

Specifically:

e While RSA 188-F:8 provides for the continuation of certain Statewide financial and other
services, Chapter 361:35, 11, Laws of 2007, provides for the repeal of the section effective
July 1, 2009. As of the date of this report, it is not clear the Department or CCSNH has
taken the steps needed to ensure the necessary staff, expertise, and policies and
procedures will be in place when the State ceases to provide services on June 30, 2009.

e As a State agency, the Department has not been required to prepare periodic financial
statements and has relied upon the DAS for the preparation of financial statements. While the
Department has provided DAS with information for inclusion in the State’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report and Single Audit Report, at the time of the audit the Department
did not have the knowledge or experience necessary to prepare standards-based
financial statements for the CCSNH or its own Single Audit report.

e While the Department has, since June 30, 2007, begun to prepare policies for the new
CCSNH organization, the policies issued to date largely describe the organization and
broad responsibilities of sections of the organization, but do not establish operating
policies and procedures necessary for the controlled financial operation of the CCSNH.

Recommendation.:

The Department and Colleges must incorporate all of the components of internal control in the
Department’s and Colleges’ daily operating activities. The Department, especially, needs to
demonstrate its acceptance of the internal control framework and its expectation that employees
of the Department and Colleges will also employ the concepts of the internal control framework
in performing their regular job responsibilities.

The CCSNH must further consider the effects on its operations of the dissolution of its
organization as a State agency and its establishment as a separate corporation. The CCSNH must
create internal controls that are commensurate with the scope of its new operations and exposure
to risks, including those that may have previously been mitigated by State controls, and are
structured at the most efficient level of its organization. Generally, it should be more efficient
and effective in establishing a system of internal control for common application at all Colleges.
The CCSNH should resist the establishment of seven separate systems of controls.

The CCSNH must also ensure that it has the necessary organization, staffing, and resources to
accept its increased responsibilities. Where necessary, the CCSNH must take action to ensure
that it has or obtains the capability and resources to respond to its responsibilities in a proactive
manner.



Auditee Response:

In fiscal year (FY) 2006, based on our assessment of risk following audit work done for the FY
2005 Single Audit Report, we focused our internal audit resources on the area we perceived to
contain the most risk, financial aid. That, along with the addition of more financial aid staff at the
System level, provided an increased level of compliance that has been reflected favorably in the
FY 2006 and FY 2007 Single Audits.

The relationship with the State of New Hampshire is one that is evolving. It was not feasible to
ramp up staffing and other resources prior to the legislation passing since it might not have. So
we are currently assessing our position in relation to the State and to other organizations within
the State. The Chancellor has been visiting various agencies to determine an approach that is
reasonable, cost effective and achievable.

The Board of Trustees voted to maintain the policies and procedures in place at the time the
legislation was passed unless specifically changed by the Board. So the policies, forms and
procedures used by us while a regular state agency have not changed dramatically since the
passage of the legislation. We have added to the internal audit staff and hope to have a full
complement soon which will allow us to monitor our systems in greater detail.

Observation No. 2: Improve Control Environment

Observation:

The Department has not established a strong, centralized control environment for the
Department and Colleges. The Department has largely relied upon the Colleges to
independently recognize the need for controls and to initiate necessary controls for their
institutions. This distributed responsibility for establishing a control structure has resulted in a
control environment that tends to be ad hoc, not consistently applied among the Colleges, and
not sufficient for the needs of the Department.

The control environment encompasses a number of factors that have a pervasive influence on the
way business activities are structured, objectives are established, and risks are assessed. The
control environment influences employees’ control awareness and instills an enterprise-wide
attitude of integrity and control consciousness commonly referred to as the “tone at the top.” The
tone at the top affects all aspects of the entity’s operations and is evidenced in management’s
philosophy and operating style, organizational structure, assignment of authority and
responsibility, and human resources policies and procedures.

We noted the following evidence of the lack of an effective control environment during our
audit.

1. During fiscal year 2007, significant portions of the Department’s administrative rules
were expired. Many of the Department’s rules had expired in July 2003. While the



Department reported that it had initiated efforts to readopt required rules, the Department did
not follow up on those efforts to ensure the rules were ultimately adopted. During fiscal year
2007, the Department did have a Board of Trustees Policy Manual in place that incorporates
some of the topics included in its expired rules.

While, effective July 2007, the Department is no longer statutorily required to file
administrative rules, the subjects of the prior rules are critical to the controlled operations of
the Department and the public’s interaction with the Department. The fact that the
Department allowed these significant rules to expire and remained out of statutory
compliance for four years raises concerns about the Department’s control environment,
including management’s concern for compliance with the regulatory requirements placed on
the Department.

The lack of explicit, documented, and communicated policies and procedures for the
approval and acceptance of federal and other grants has resulted in at least one
instance during fiscal year 2007 (a $5,000 grant) where a College applied for and
entered into a grant agreement without the prior knowledge and concurrence of the
Department and Board of Trustees.

The Department has not established a formal fraud reporting policy. The lack of a
written policy may delay the reporting of fraudulent activity. The effectiveness of a fraud
reporting policy is enhanced when employees have a clear understanding of fraud indicators
and what constitutes a fraudulent act. It is important that the reporting procedure is non-
threatening for the reporter and provides for the reasonable protection of all parties.

The Department has not required and demonstrated compliance with its contract for a
financial management system. Weaknesses in the Department’s administration of the
project have resulted in a situation where the contract amount has been fully expended and,
as of June 30, 2007, the Department and Colleges had not achieved full functionality from
the system. Insufficient employee training and acceptance of the capabilities of the Banner
Finance system have resulted in employees continuing to rely upon spreadsheets and other
information systems intended to be eliminated by the new system. According to the
Department, additional training and expense is needed prior to its achieving full utilization of
the Banner Finance system.

During fiscal year 2006, the Department entered into a $1.8 million contract to install a new
financial management system and upgrade other related software. According to the contract,
payments were to be based on contractor invoices and contract deliverables. As provided in
the standard State contract, the contract also provided that the State may make changes or
revisions within the scope of the contract at any time by written change order. The contract
further provided that all change orders shall be subject to the amendment process described
in the contract, which requires written documentation and Governor and Council approval for
contract changes.

The contract was for the implementation of a new operating system, an update to existing
software, consolidation of four regional Student Services Databases into a single database,



and the installation and implementation of a single, central finance system (known as Banner
Finance) to be used by all of the Colleges. Subsequent to the start of the contract work, the
Department and the vendor agreed that a common database structure for the Student Services
Database with a separate installation at each of the seven Colleges would serve the Colleges
better than a single Department installation. In March of 2006, a revised scope of work
creating seven replica systems was agreed to. As the change in the scope of work made the
original contract deliverables no longer applicable, the Department and contractor agreed the
remaining contract amount, approximately $1,062,000, would be paid in 15 payments of
approximately $70,800. According to the Department, the change in the contract scope of
work from one to seven systems and the change in the contract payment terms were not
documented or submitted for Governor and Council approval. It is unclear whether the
Department was aware of the contract control requirements. By not complying with contract
controls, including not documenting significant changes to contract provisions and not
submitting those changes to Governor and Council, the Department significantly increased its
risk that the objectives of the contract would not be achieved.

During fiscal year 2007, the Department’s internal audit staff, consisting of a manager
and one staff person, focused primarily on the College’s federal financial aid programs,
while other areas of the Department and Colleges also needing internal audit attention
have been largely ignored. The Department’s internal audit activities have for the most part
focused on these programs since 2005 in response to a financial aid fraud reported in the
State’s 2005 Single Audit of Federal Financial Assistance Programs. Some Colleges reported
to the auditors that their institutions would have benefited from increased internal auditor
attention during this period. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

During fiscal year 2007, the Department paid the salary and benefits of a State
employee to serve as the Executive Director of the New Hampshire Community-
Technical Colleges Foundation. The Department and Foundation have participated in this
relationship since August 2004 despite contrary advice received from the Department of
Justice (DOJ) in October 2002.

The lack of separation between the Department and Foundation, illustrated by the Executive
Director of the Foundation being a Department employee reporting directly to the
Commissioner of the Department, may affect the Internal Revenue Service’s determination
of the organization’s status as a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization. This status was granted to
the Foundation in 2005.

The Department has not established and implemented comprehensive information
technology (IT) policies and procedures to promote controls in its IT systems. Many of
the IT policies and procedures currently in place at the Department and Colleges are informal
and not the result of documented direction from management. The lack of documentation
supporting IT policies and procedures increases the risk that controls necessary for the secure
and controlled operation of the Department and Colleges will not be in place or operating as
intended.



The Department is exempt from the statutory requirement for the preparation of an IT plan
and is also exempt from adherence to the Office of Information Technology (OIT) State-
wide IT policies and procedures. Because the Department has not established and enforced
its own IT policies and procedures, many of the common, yet critical, IT security controls
were not adhered to during fiscal year 2007.

Documentation maintained to support disbursements from the Student Activity
Account (Account) is not consistently sufficient to demonstrate the disbursement met
the purposes of the Account. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the
Department.

a. Testing of Account disbursements revealed instances where insufficient documentation
was available to justify charging certain disbursements to student funds. These purchases
included landscaping athletic fields, repairs to a dormitory stairwell and flooring,
emergency financial aid loans to students, grants to students to purchase books, and
signage at one College. While documentation for each of the disbursements noted an
authorized student representative and advisor approved the disbursement, the
documentation did not establish why the expenditure, which would otherwise appear to
be a College responsibility, would be funded from the Account. While student
organizations receive certain limited information on activity in the Account, it is not clear
that the information is sufficient to allow students and student organizations to fully
recognize and understand the purpose of disbursements made from their Account.

b. In two instances, we noted Colleges used the Account for other than their intended
purposes.

1. One College deposited a relatively small grant received by a faculty member in the
College’s Account, reportedly because the account would allow easy access to the
grant money. Making an expenditure out of the Account is less cumbersome as it
avoids the normal State expenditure control processes. According to the Department,
this was an improper use of the College’s Account.

2. One College held $3,000 of Account funds in the College’s administrative operating
account instead of depositing the money to the Account. The College ultimately used
this money to match a Governor Success Grant. The College disbursed this student
money without obtaining the necessary prior approval of the Student Senate
representative. According to the College, this method of funding the match to the
Governor Success Grant has been in place since 2004.

Recommendation:

The Department and Colleges must establish and demonstrate an appropriate control
environment for the Department and Colleges.

1.

The Department should review the circumstances that allowed the rules to expire without
timely readoption. The Department should recognize the significance of its responsibility to
provide clear and binding guidance for the public’s interaction with the Department and also
the negative effect on the organization’s control environment when employees and others
regard management’s apparent inattention to significant rules and responsibilities. In order to
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encourage controlled operation, the Department should ensure that it sets an appropriate
example to employees and others of the need to comply with rules and other operating
procedures.

The Department should clearly document and effectively communicate all policies and
procedures.

If the Department and Board determine that centralized Department and Board approval of
all grant agreements is an important control activity, the Department and Board should
establish clear, documented policies and procedures to effectuate that control. In addition, the
Department should clearly communicate the policies and procedures and provide any training
and other guidance that may be needed by the Colleges to ensure that the policies and
procedures are understood and applied as intended. The Department should also institute
monitoring efforts to demonstrate its commitment to ensuring continued compliance with any
instituted control.

The Department should establish a fraud reporting policy and provide its employees with
fraud awareness training. The Department should take measures to ensure that the policy
facilitates and encourages a reporting environment that protects all parties involved.

The Department must become more responsible for project monitoring, including requiring
compliance with contract terms and conditions. Changes to contracts, including changes to
contract deliverables and other significant contract provisions, must be subject to controls
that will ensure that changes are only made and accepted when required by valid and vetted
business needs of the Department.

The Department should review the circumstances that allowed the control failures over the
finance system contract to determine how and why they occurred and how they can be
avoided in the future. The Department should consider whether it provided sufficient
Department technical, financial, legal, and administrative resources to properly support and
monitor contract activity and progress.

The Department should review the current status of its Banner Finance system to determine
the most efficient and cost effective way to complete the project and receive full functionality
from its finance system.

The Department should avoid utilizing its internal audit staff to augment operating staff at the
expense of internal auditing and should consider expanding its internal audit resources to
allow for increased internal audit coverage of Department and College operations.

The Department should consult with legal counsel to review the Department’s relationship
with the Foundation to ensure that the necessary separation of operations exists to provide

continued compliance with Internal Revenue Service regulations.

The Department should establish appropriate controls over its IT systems, including the IT
systems at the Colleges. While the Department may be exempt from OIT controls, the
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Department should recognize the OIT controls as guidance for controls that should be in
place and incorporate all relevant OIT controls in its IT control structure. The Department
should supplement these standard controls as appropriate for its circumstances.

The Department should also prepare an IT plan. While the Department is exempted from the
statutory requirement for an IT plan, such a plan can be a critical component of IT controls.
A well developed IT plan documents the framework upon which IT controls are established
and provides information on anticipated future changes to the IT framework.

8. Activity in a College’s Student Activity Account should be limited to the purpose of the
Account. Documentation supporting disbursements from the Account should include
documentation that supports the student benefit derived from the disbursement. Financial
information provided to student organizations having oversight of the student funds should
be sufficiently complete to allow for proper oversight and unusual expenditures from the
Account should be supported by additional documentation, such as approved minutes of
student oversight organizations.

Auditee Response:

The business process throughout the System is changing. We started an implementation process
in fiscal year (FY) 2007 that moved us from a cash basis of accounting to an accrual basis. With
that change came numerous changes in the way the accounting information was processed. In
order to make those changes we held meetings that included accounting personnel from the
colleges and the System Office, on a monthly basis and often, more frequently. During those
meetings the manner of change and the implications of change were discussed in detail. The
elements of the control environment were discussed in those meetings as employees sought to
effect change while at the same time sought to do so in a manner that would control the
transactions. We did not do this in a formal manner, starting with number one and going through
to number 5, but did touch upon those very subjects. Many of the new procedures were
documented with narrative and screen shots of the applicable software. Those procedures, along
with numerous Banner training guides, computer courses, forms and reports, were posted on an
internal website for access by all the colleges and the System Office. While not formally
documented, we did discuss the need for internal control and attempted to implement procedures
for the new system to achieve that. We were not perfect as the observations below indicate
however, we did not abandon the concept of internal control.

1. We concur. We were in the process of reestablishing the rules and continued to operate under
the terms of the expired rules. As CCSNH moves forward under the terms of Chapter 361,
Laws of 2007, the Board of Trustees, the System Office and the Colleges are engaged in
developing operational policies and procedures to include topics previously covered by the
administrative rules.

2. We concur. We will standardize the procedures for approval of grant agreements in order to
ensure compliance with Board of Trustees policy.
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We concur. The System will work to establish a fraud reporting policy to ensure that all
employees are aware that they have a responsibility to report fraud. We will check with other
agencies and schools to see if we can incorporate existing policies. In addition, the System
will provide fraud awareness training to its employees.

We concur. In July 2005, the System entered into a five year contract, which runs through
July 2010. The first two years of the contract were funded in the amount of $1,759,000. The
contract was signed in order to accomplish the following.

¢ Install, upgrade and test all Banner modules from version 6 to 7.

e Install and test a new enterprise backup system capable of performing system and
incremental backups for the entire data center.

e Install hardware and software necessary to convert Banner modules to run on UNIX as
opposed to VMAS.

e Combine the four existing college databases using Banner Accounts Receivable module
to a single database instance with minimal disruption to the colleges.

e Install and configure Banner Finance for use by the System as its primary finance
software.

Nine months into the project, it was determined that combining the four existing databases
into one would not be feasible. Instead, a database was established at each of the 7 campuses.
Due to the change in deliverables, from that point on the contract was paid out monthly; in an
amount equal to the remaining balance divided by the remaining months.

The change in the contract workplan should have been better documented and subject to
additional approvals. We will see that this type of instance is not replicated in the future and
that additional controls are exerted over contracts.

The Banner Finance module was not implemented at the end of FY 2007, but rather four
months later, on November 1, 2007. The delay was at the request of the System. We felt the
user acceptance training had not progressed as it should have and we were not in a position to
flip the switch until November. The Banner Finance module is currently fully installed and
operating according to the terms of the contract.

We concur. The System made a decision to focus its internal auditing resources on the area
with the most risk, financial aid. As a result, 100% of the internal auditor’s time was spent on
financial aid. Resources have been added to the financial aid function at the system level and
now financial aid is monitored by the employees in those new positions. That now leaves the
audit manager and the two new auditing positions that have been established to audit the
other aspects of the system.

We concur. We will seek legal advice to clarify the relationship between the Foundation and

the System with regard to the executive director to ensure the 501(c)(3) tax exempt status is
maintained.
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7. We concur. We have started the review and revision of current System policies pertaining to
user access to computing and networking/internet facilities and resources. The goal is to
ensure the policies are aligned with today’s services, the user responsibilities are clearly
defined, and the policies are broadly disseminated. We believe we have adequate control
over physical access to the computer room. Access is limited to those people who are on call
after hours for systems failures and to NHTI security in case of fire. Access is controlled by
key card.

Automatic password expirations are in place for Banner Finance and will be implemented for
all Banner systems. Quickbooks will be phased out at the colleges. We have started meeting
with the college presidents and their IT staff to prepare our new IT Strategic Plan. While it is
still early in the process, the primary goals are disaster recovery, enhancements which will
increase the availability of central systems, enhanced communications including emergency
alert systems, and the general coordination of technology projects which affect both the
business and academic processes of the colleges.

8. We concur.

a.  The System will review these types of expenditures to ensure they conform with the
students’ intended use of these funds.

b.1. This was an oversight. The policy is to establish grants in the state’s accounting system
and record the revenue and associated expenditures there. The college has received
instructions for future instances of this type of situation.

b.2. This was an oversight. The policy is to obtain student approval of all student activity
expenditures prior to disbursement. The system will review these types of expenditures
to ensure they conform to the student’s intended use of these funds.

Observation No. 3: Establish A Risk Assessment Process

Observation:

The Department has not established a formal risk assessment process. A prerequisite to risk
assessment is the establishment of objectives for the organization. While the Department and
Colleges have experienced organizational and operational changes over time, including
significant changes since June 30, 2007, they have not periodically and formally reviewed
operations to assess where and how things could go wrong, evaluated the likelihood of those
occurrences, and established reasonable responses to those potential occurrences. Without a
risk assessment process, the identification and response to risk occurs in a reactive mode, often
after a risk has been realized and a loss incurred.

An entity’s performance can be at risk due to internal or external factors. These factors can affect
the entity’s ability to reach and maintain adherence to its stated or implied objectives. External
factors include economic changes affecting decisions related to financing, capital expenditures,
changing customer needs or expectations, new legislation, natural catastrophes, and others.
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Internal factors including disruption of information systems, quality of personnel hired, methods
of training and motivating employees, and changes in management responsibilities can also
affect the way certain controls operate. Risks increase at times of change including changes in
organization, personnel, and procedures.

There is no clear indication the Department has regularly reviewed its operations for exposure
and response to risk.

1.

The Department does not have formal policies and procedures in place for periodically
reviewing its operations for risks that could jeopardize its ability to continue to function
as management intends. Currently, when risks are identified the Department may review
the risk area and make recommendations; however, there are no formal policies and
procedures to continuously review operations for risks.

During fiscal year 2007, the Department had not implemented a comprehensive,
documented, Department-wide and College-specific disaster recovery and business
continuity plan to address an emergency or other unplanned events that could cause
significant disruption, risk of loss, or other harm to the Department, employees,
students, or others. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

The decentralized acceptance and transfer of unrecorded receipts, primarily in the
form of unendorsed checks, increases the risk that the receipts could be lost,
misapplied, or stolen.

As a matter of customer convenience, the Department and Colleges have allowed various
areas of the Colleges, in addition to the Bursar’s Office, to collect fees and other revenues
from students without requiring these areas to employ standard revenue collection controls.
For example, tuition and fee revenues collected at the Concord Division of Continuing
Education, the Registrars Office, and Admissions and Reception areas are not initially
recorded upon receipt. Checks received in these areas are regularly stapled to accompanying
documents and forwarded without restrictive endorsement to the Bursar’s Office for initial
recording and processing. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

The Department has not addressed the risks associated with its practices for collecting
and depositing student loan repayments, which are inefficient and lack appropriate
control processes.

The Department employs a loan-servicing agent to collect and account for the repayments of
student loans disbursed under the federal Perkins Loan program. This agent regularly
deposits amounts collected on behalf of the Department into a Department bank account.
During fiscal year 2007, the Department cut 12 checks totaling $163,495 from this account
for deposit in the State Treasury account. This Department process, in addition to being
inefficient (not having the agent deposit directly into a Treasury account), has significant
segregation of duties weaknesses as one Department employee is essentially singly
responsible for all activities related to the Department account. This employee has custody of
the checkbook, prepares the checks to transfer funds to the Treasury, receives the bank
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statements, and performs the reconciliation of the bank account. The employee is also
responsible for performing the reconciliation of the Perkins Loan Activity reported by the
servicing agent and the information reported in the State’s accounting system (NHIFS).

Recommendation:

The Department and Colleges must establish risk assessment processes to continuously review
operations for exposure to risk and respond by eliminating or mitigating the risk where
reasonably possible.

1.

The Department should develop risk assessment policies and procedures that establish and
formalize a risk assessment process and provide for a regular and continuous risk assessment
of its operations. Identifying risks significant to Department operations, and strategies to
mitigate those risks, should enhance the effectiveness of the Department’s planning and
resource allocation processes and its control processes.

The Department should establish and implement a disaster recovery and business continuity
plan that addresses the risks faced by the Department as a whole and for each of the Colleges.
The Department should clearly identify relevant emergencies, protocols for the notification
of an emergency, the response to an emergency, and the establishment of a crisis
management team to direct response operations intended to mitigate any physical, financial,
and other damage and disruption that may result.

Once the disaster recovery and business continuity plan is established and implemented, the
plan should be periodically tested, reviewed, and modified to ensure it continues to meet the
Department’s needs.

The Department and Colleges should assess the additional risks it incurs by allowing areas in
addition to the Bursar’s Office to collect revenues. If the Department and Colleges determine
that it is to their benefit to continue to provide this service to their students, the Department
and Colleges should establish reasonable control activities to mitigate that risk. Controls
should include policies and procedures for the initial recording of the receipts and the
application of a restrictive endorsement on all checks upon initial receipt.

The Department should review and consider the risk associated with its processes related to
collection of Perkins Loan repayments and the continued need for the Department to operate
this bank account. The Department should work with the loan servicing agent and the State
Treasury to make the student loan repayment process more efficient and controlled by having
the loan servicing agent make payments directly to a Treasury account, eliminating the need
for, and related risk of, maintaining a separate Department account for processing loan
repayments.

The Department should institute appropriate controls over the collection and reporting of
loan repayments. Appropriate control activities, including segregation of duties, and
processes for monitoring those control activities, including a review and approval of account
reconciliations, should be implemented.
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Auditee Response:

1. We concur. The System will establish risk assessment policies and procedures. The System
has begun the process in the area of campus security. We have concluded an assessment of
all our facilities using a globally-recognized security firm. As a result of this system-wide
assessment, we now have an extensive report detailing measures to improve the safety and
security environment at our colleges.

2. We concur. The System will develop and implement a disaster recovery plan. As mentioned
in No. 1 above, the System has evaluated the status of campus security and this resulting
report should aid in this endeavor.

3. We concur. The ability for students to pay at various locations around the campuses at
various times of the day and evening is important but the need for internal control over the
receipt of cash is necessary. We will review our collection policies to ensure that revenue is
recorded timely.

4. We concur. CCSNH recognizes the need for segregation of duties in this process. The
Department has closed this account and the loan servicer now remits payment directly to the
Treasury.

Observation No 4: Establish Effective Control Activities

Observation:

Many Department and College control activities have become ineffective due to the lack of
proper design, maintenance, and performance of controls and the lack of follow-up on the
results of the control activities that are performed.

An entity’s control activities are the policies and procedures used to ensure that the entity’s
objectives are attained and that management’s directives identified as necessary to address risk
are carried out. Controls are categorized as preventative, detective, manual, computer, and
management controls and include a range of activities as diverse as approvals, authorizations,
verifications, reconciliations, reviews of operating performance, security of assets, and
segregation of duties.

The following are examples of weaknesses noted in the Department’s and Colleges’ control
activities.

1. During fiscal year 2007, the Department did not perform appropriate reconciliations of
revenues processed through its two primary information systems. While the Department
and Colleges accumulate and review tuition and fee revenue information using their
automated information system (Banner) reports, the Department and Colleges do not
reconcile revenue reported by the Banner system to revenue reported in the State’s
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accounting system (NHIFS). The lack of a reconciliation process for comparing tuition and
fee revenue reported in the Department’s two primary financial information systems,
including reviewing for and resolving discrepancies in amounts reported by the two systems,
results in a situation where the Department and Colleges may be delayed in detecting revenue
errors or frauds that may occur. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the
Department.

The Department has not established policies and procedures to promote efficient,
controlled, and consistent banking practices for the Colleges. The Department has not
established policies and procedures directing the Colleges to manage their deposits and bank
account balances to promote efficient cash flow practices, compliance with RSA 6:11, and
fulfillment of their fiduciary responsibility in maintaining custody of student and other funds.
A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

In reviewing the College bank accounts for timely transfer of amounts to Treasury and to the
Student Activity Accounts, we noted that the Colleges were not making daily transfers. We
found the Colleges were generally timely in making deposits to the bank, but were not timely
in transferring amounts from the bank accounts to the State Treasury and to the Student
Activity Accounts. The timing of transfers from the College bank accounts to the Treasury
and Student Activity Accounts ranged from approximately weekly to bi-monthly depending
upon the College and account.

At June 30, 2007, the book balance in the local accounts was approximately $1.4 million.
This amount included approximately $80,000 held in reserves to pay for tuition refunds and
other miscellaneous student expenses, $131,000 awaiting transfer to Student Activity
accounts, $48,000 awaiting transfer to the Foundation for scholarships, and over $1 million
awaiting allocation to NHIFS, Student Activity, or other accounts. Approximately $258,000
of the more than $1 million awaiting allocation was student wellness fees held by one
College prior to transfer of the amount to the State Treasury to cover bond payments for a
wellness center. The majority of the remainder was revenue collected by the Colleges that
had not yet been reported in NHIFS and transferred to the State Treasury at June 30, 2007.

The Department has not established policies and procedures to prohibit unauthorized
changes to Department and College bank accounts. According to the Department, it has
not been made clear to its Colleges and employees that bank accounts using the Department’s
name and State federal tax identification number were not to be opened or modified without
the Department’s authorization. An employee was able to modify a control parameter within
a College bank account online without authorization because the Department had not
implemented controls to adequately restrict access to the Department’s online money
manager system.

e The Department established a checking account with a local bank for the purpose of a
“Sunshine Account”, funded by employee donations and fundraisers. The Department
used the account to support the purchases of gifts and flowers for employees at special
occasions or times of personal loss or illness, ice cream socials, holiday parties, and other
events. The Department opened the checking account in October 2001 using the
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Department’s name and the State’s federal tax identification number. The Department did
not notify the State Treasurer of the account, as the intention was to maintain the account
separate from the Department’s operations.

e A College financial officer made a change to the control framework of the Department’s
bank accounts without the knowledge of the Department’s Director of Finance or State
Treasury. The College financial officer used the access provided by the unauthorized
change to process an otherwise unallowed transaction.

o A College financial officer transferred $12,191 out of another College’s account to
the State Treasury in error. In an attempt to correct the error, the College financial
officer created what was to be a temporary new transfer authority for the account.
This unauthorized transfer authority was used to correct the effect of the original
transfer and place money back into the College’s account. When the College
financial officer tried to close the temporary account transfer authority, the other
College’s account was accidentally closed instead. The Department’s Director of
Finance was contacted at this point and the accounts were corrected.

4. Errors in the Department’s preparation of information for inclusion in the State’s fiscal
year 2007 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA), included in the State’s
Single Audit of Federal Financial Assistance Programs, indicated a lack of review and
approval control activities prior to the submission of the information.

The Department’s fiscal year 2007 SEFA information contained transcription errors in two of
the thirteen programs reported and omitted the reporting for one program. The Department
was unaware of the errors prior to the auditor bringing the errors to the Department’s
attention.

5. The timing of the Department’s year-end reviews of financial aid transactions does not
allow for the timely and effective correction of some noted errors.

The Department estimated that it may be required to reimburse the federal programs at least
$107,000 in financial aid overpayments that were detected in the year-end review process
that could not be recovered from students, due to the passage of time since the errors had
originally occurred.

6. The Department has not established necessary bank account reconciliation procedures
to ensure Colleges are managing excessively old outstanding checks being carried on
monthly reconciliations of bank accounts. Approximately 80 checks over three years old
were still being carried on College account reconciliations. One check drawn in June 1994
was carried on one College’s June 30, 2007 account reconciliation.

While the Department relies on its “Procedures for Completing the Abandoned Property
Report” policy to direct Colleges to report checks outstanding after three years to the State
Treasury as abandoned property, the Department relies on the information reported by the
colleges and does not monitor the Colleges’ reporting to ensure that all unclaimed checks that
should be reported to Treasury are in fact reported.
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Recommendation.:

The Department and Colleges must establish reasonable and appropriate control activities for
their operations.

1.

The Department and Colleges must establish policies and procedures for the reconciliation of
revenues reported in its information systems. Tuition and other revenues reported in the
Banner system should be periodically reconciled to similar information in NHIFS.
Differences noted in the reconciliations should be researched and resolved.

The Department must establish policies and procedures that define and describe required
control activities that promote consistent, efficient, and controlled banking practices at the
Colleges. In addition to depositing revenues timely, the Colleges should promptly transfer
funds from the accounts of initial deposit to the State Treasury accounts or the Student
Activity accounts as appropriate.

A key component of these policies and procedures must be a regular, formal reconciliation
by each College of the revenues collected to the amounts deposited and to the amounts
recorded in the relevant accounting systems, including College, Department, and State
accounting systems. College bank accounts should not be used to hold money that should be
deposited in other State accounts. Amounts collected as deferred revenue and for bond
payments should be immediately recorded as such and transferred to the State Treasury.

The Department should review its policies for maintaining cash reserves in checking
accounts. If upon review it remains appropriate for Colleges to keep reserves, additional
policies and procedures should be established to provide for determining the appropriate
amounts and uses of the reserves. In accordance with RSA 6:11, IV a, the Department should
request the concurrence of the State Treasurer in determining reserve amounts.

The Department should establish policies and procedures for managing bank accounts,
including controls over the opening and closing of accounts and the regular monitoring of
open accounts for continued need. Authority to open and close and access accounts should be
appropriately restricted to protect the assets of the Department and Colleges and reduce the
risk that fraud or errors could occur.

The Department should work with its banks to ensure that the authority to make changes to
Department and College bank accounts is restricted to authorized personnel only. The
Department should ensure that the authority to change the account structure is limited to
those Department and College employees with that responsibility.

The Department should institute effective control activities, including review and approval
controls, for its significant financial reporting processes.

The Department should review the circumstances surrounding the problems it encountered in

preparing the 2007 SEFA to determine whether additional policies and procedures and
training are required to lessen the risk of future reporting errors.

20



5.

The Department should consider performing file reviews of financial aid transactions on a
more timely basis to provide for a more effective control process. File reviews performed
earlier each semester would allow any needed corrections to be made when students are in a
position to both benefit from the correction of an initial underpayment and also be available
to recover overpayments.

The Department should establish policies and procedures for the management of its bank
accounts, including the reconciliation and timely disposition of outstanding checks drawn on
those accounts. The Department should work with its banks to establish a reasonable
acceptance period for checks drawn on College accounts. The policies and procedures
established by the Department should provide for review of outstanding checks approaching
the expiration of the acceptance period and for directed attempts to contact payees to
encourage the cashing of held checks and the reissue of lost checks.

The Department should review its abandoned property policy to determine why its Colleges
hold excessively old outstanding checks, contrary to the Department policy. The Department
should consider whether a revision to the policy would assist in more effectively
communicating its policies to the Colleges.

Auditee Response:

1.

We concur. The Banner System is an accrual based financial system while the State’s system
is, except for revenue entries made at year end, a cash basis system. To reconcile accrued
revenue to the cash transferred to the State was not feasible while the Banner Finance module
was not installed. Now that we have the Banner Finance module installed we track the
movement of cash to Treasury which is recorded as a transfer of funds between bank
accounts.

We concur. We will monitor the movement of funds from the colleges to the Treasury to
ensure that they are moved in a timely fashion. The colleges do need to hold back a certain
amount of funds to provide the coverage for student refunds that have to be disbursed within
a certain time frame.

We concur. The fund account has been closed. The ability to change the campus accounts has
been restricted to the Director of Finance. We intend to reduce the number of accounts and to
limit the activity at each campus to lower the risk associated with the revenue collection
activity.

We concur. We have implemented a review of the SEFA in order to catch errors prior to
submission.

We concur. During 2006-2007 an unexpected resource intensive project postponed the
planned schedule for student file review. It is our intent and expectation that review by the
college Financial Aid staff and by the System Financial Aid Compliance staff will occur
during the award year so that adjustments can be made, appropriate underpayments paid out
and overpayments recovered.
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6. We concur. The System will review its bank reconciliations and take appropriate action with
regard to the old outstanding checks and in the future deal with outstanding checks in a
timely fashion.

Observation No. 5: Improve Information And Communication

Observation:

Lack of effective information sharing and communication within the Department and Colleges
have contributed to situations where managers and other employees do not have timely access
to the relevant, complete, and accurate information necessary to make informed decisions.

Information is needed at all levels of an organization to run its operations and to move toward
achievement of the organization’s objectives. Financial information is used not only in
developing financial statements for external reporting, it is also used as a basis for operating
decisions, such as monitoring performance and allocating resources. In order for information to
be useful, it must be communicated and made available for use in a timeframe that allows the
information to remain relevant. Information that is not communicated or is not communicated
timely loses its value.

The following are examples we noted where the Department and Colleges suffered from a lack
of information and communication.

1. The Department’s implementation of the new financial module of its Banner
information system has highlighted instances where the current Student Services
modules of the information system were recognized as reporting incorrect information,
yet the Department did not determine the extent of the system problems that caused the
incorrect information and did not take action to correct the information system.

Inconsistent, unrecognized, or otherwise suspect information in certain Colleges’ information
systems have resulted in instances where employees and others have discounted as unreliable
some of the information provided from these systems. For example, the Department uses
various Banner information reports to determine total student charges and how payments on
those charges are applied to the outstanding balances on the students’ accounts. These reports
were not fully understood, maintained, or utilized as a reliable source of information for
planning or other purposes during fiscal year 2007. The Department agreed these reports had
not been properly maintained and, while there are known problems with certain information
in the reports, they consider the reports to be reasonably accurate and continue their use. The
Department has not determined the extent of the problems with the reports nor has it notified
users of the potential risk of assuming the reports are accurate.

During fiscal year 2007 and ongoing into fiscal year 2008, the Department and the Colleges

were in the midst of a conversion to a new full-accrual based general ledger accounting
system (Banner Finance). During this period, it was not clear that sufficient financial
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management information reports were being designed and produced concurrent with the
conversion to allow for a controlled understanding, review, and acceptance of information
generated by the new system. Colleges reported having to produce multiple spreadsheets to
allow for accumulation and reconciliation of information that should be readily available
from a well-designed system. The fact these reports were not available in a timeframe to
allow their use in reviewing the results of the conversion may signify problems in the
controlled conversion of the system.

The Department has not established controls to ensure that tuition and other course
fees are accurately reflected in the Colleges’ automated information systems (Banner).
The lack of effective controls over the establishment and input of fees contributed to errors
noted at the Concord and Claremont campuses in lab fee amounts programmed into the
financial systems, which resulted in some incorrect charges to students during fiscal year
2007.

e At one College, the lab fee for an Addiction Counseling course was erroneously
calculated and keyed into the Banner system. The Registrar stated this was a keying error
that was not caught during their manual review of the lab fees. There was no effect on
revenue as no students enrolled in the course.

e At one College, a $44 lab fee was charged for a Physics course even though the course
did not appear to warrant a fee based upon the Board of Trustees formula for calculating
lab fees. While the campus Registrar stated it was aware charging a fee was not in line
with the Trustees’ formula, the Department was unable to provide any documentation to
evidence having received approval for the fee. The Registrar stated that this course will
be identified as an exception to the Trustee rule for 2009. Thirteen students enrolled in
the course and were subject to the $44 lab fee during fiscal year 2007.

e At one College, a lab fee was not charged for a Human Services course even though the
Board of Trustees formula for calculating lab fees would suggest an $88 lab fee for the
course. According to the College Registrar, the course may have been added to the
Banner system late and information related to the added course was not reviewed to
ensure the lab fees were properly programmed into Banner. Four students enrolled in the
course.

e At one College, a $220 lab fee for two Nursing courses was charged even though the lab
fees should have been $132 for each course. Apparently, the lab fees were incorrectly
calculated using obsolete credit hour information. As a result, 41 students were each
overcharged $88 in lab fees.

The Department’s procedures for allocating costs to related organizations is not
sufficiently developed to allow for fair cost sharing, revenue recovery, and financial
accounting necessary to accurately report and understand the results of operations.

For example:

e The Department allocates electric power costs to the Police Standards and Training
Council (PSTC) based on a calculation with a charge per kilowatt-hour and a constant
factor that was established in 1992. The Department reports it has used the same
calculation since that time without further review. The Department has not periodically
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determined whether the allocation method and factors used in the allocation continue to
be appropriate. The electric power costs for all other buildings on the Concord Campus
are allocated based on each building’s proportionate square footage. Because the
Department does not review the electric power cost allocation, the Department cannot
demonstrate that the allocation methods and factors used are appropriate. During fiscal
year 2007, total electricity costs were $1.2 million. The Department allocated $26,388 of
that amount to the PSTC.

e The Department has an agreement with the PSTC by which the PSTC pays the
Department $6,552 annually for plowing and general road and other maintenance.
According to the Department, the amount charged per the agreement has remained the
same since at least 1987. While the agreement was most recently updated in 2006, the
Department reports that the scope of services provided and the costs for those services
were not reviewed to reasonably ensure that the agreed to level of services and agreement
amount remains appropriate.

e The Department provides a number of services to the Christa McAuliffe Planetarium
including certain grounds upkeep and snow removal services. The Department does not
charge the Planetarium for these services.

e The Department charges each College an amount equal to 5.5% of their total tuition and
fee revenue, with an additional 10% charged on Distance Learning revenue, in a
procedure intended to recover the cost of central services provided to the Colleges
including the processing of payroll and general expenditures, budgeting, and grant
processing. The Department stated the 5.5% charge rate has remained unchanged since
1992 and the additional 10% Distance Learning charge rate has been unchanged since
2000. The total fiscal year 2007 Department cost allocation was $2,472,954 ($2,286,145
for general College operations and $186,809 for Distance Learning). The Department
could not demonstrate that it has reviewed the continued appropriateness of these charge
rates since the inception of these charges. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit
of the Department.

4. The Department’s payroll process is not efficient. At June 30, 2007, the Department had a
payroll of 811 full-time, 256 part-time, and 1,181 adjunct faculty employees. The payroll
process used by the Department included manual timesheets for many employees and
redundant data entry into multiple payroll and related information systems such as payroll
projection sheets, used for budgeting purposes, and employee information databases, used to
track information not available in the State’s payroll system, GHRS. The fact that the
Department operates at seven different locations throughout the State compounds the need
for efficient payroll processes that allow for efficient data input, control, and access.

5. Two of the Department’s seven Colleges did not credit the appropriate portion of the
Comprehensive Student Services Fee to the General Fund during fiscal year 2007. One
of the Colleges retained the entire amount collected in the Administrative Account, resulting
in a $48,671 excess credit to the Administrative Account and an equal shortage to the
General Fund, and the other College credited the entire amount collected to the Student
Activity Account, resulting in a $9,364 excess credit to the Student Activity Account and an
equal shortage to the General Fund, contrary to the Board of Trustees’ policies.
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The affected Colleges indicated that their noncompliance was due to a lack of information or
having received conflicting information.

6. During fiscal year 2007, the Department had not established effective internal controls
over the Colleges’ accrual of accounts receivable. Policies and procedures covering the
accrual of accounts receivable were not sufficiently developed and communicated by the
Department and the Colleges’ accrual practices were not sufficiently monitored to allow the
Department to have reasonable assurance that the Colleges were properly recording and
reporting accounts receivable.

e The Department reported approximately $1.4 million of accounts receivable at June 30,
2007 on the modified accrual basis of accounting. This amount represented the
Department’s accumulation of the Colleges’ estimates of the amount of cash owed the
Colleges that would be collected within 60 days of the fiscal year end. The Department
did not review the amounts reported by the Colleges for reasonableness even though two
Colleges reported no accounts receivable at June 30, 2007. The Department did not
require the Colleges to report accounts receivable at June 30, 2007 on the full accrual
basis, the basis of accounting necessary for the State’s government-wide financial
statements included in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

e The Department did not provide the Colleges with specific instructions, guidance, or
other policies and procedures for estimating year-end tuition amounts receivable. The
lack of direction from the Department resulted in the Colleges using inconsistent
approaches in determining the amounts to report at June 30, 2007. For example, two
Colleges excluded day and evening tuition receivables while other Colleges included
these receivables in reporting amounts collectible within 60 days. There was no
explanation for this disparate approach other than the stated assumption that the Colleges
know their students best and whether or not they are likely to pay amounts owed.

7. Controls over the application of fee exemptions to support reduced revenue collections
are not consistently applied at all Colleges. While, during fiscal year 2007, certain
Colleges had established review and approval controls for the use of fee exemptions, at four
of the Colleges, the appropriateness of fee exemptions applied to tuition and other fees was
not formally reviewed.

While no clear inappropriate use of fee exemptions was noted during the audit, an instance
was noted where a Running Start Credit Voucher tuition waiver, recorded as a fee exemption
in the accounting system, was used to reduce a tuition fee after the expiration date on the
voucher. While the College reported the College President approved the use of the voucher
after its expiration date, there was no documentation to support the granting of that approval.

At one College it was also noted that accounting system access authorities for posting fee
exemptions were not appropriately restricted.
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8. The Department could not demonstrate that it was in compliance with the reporting

requirements of the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act and the Jeanne Clery
Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act (Acts) during
fiscal year 2007. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

The Acts require that certain drug and alcohol abuse prevention and crime statistics
information be provided to enrolled students, employees, and others. The Department could
not demonstrate that the Colleges had provided the required information to the respective
recipients in a manner that met the conditions of the Acts during fiscal year 2007. The
Department did not formally communicate the Acts’ requirements to the Colleges and did not
establish any policies and procedures for the Colleges to follow in performing the required
notifications. In addition, the Department did not monitor the performance of the Colleges in
making the required notifications.

Recommendation:

The Department and Colleges must improve the effectiveness of their information and
communication systems.

1.

As part of its efforts to implement the financial module of the Banner information system, the
Department must insist upon accurate and relevant reporting from that system. The
Department should not be satisfied with systems that report information regarded as being
inaccurate, incomplete, or otherwise suspect.

The Department and Colleges must require the new information system to provide well
designed and useful reports that meet the information needs of financial and operational
management, other employees, oversight bodies, students, and other users. The needs of
these users and the reporting necessary to meet these needs must be considered during the
system’s design stages to ensure that complete and accurate information is captured to
provide for the efficient reporting required from the system. Reported information must be
regularly and critically reviewed to detect and correct reporting errors or deficiencies.

The Department should review and improve its current process for implementing course fees
and changes to course fees. The Department should establish formal course fee procedures
which include both performance and documentation controls to reasonably ensure that course
fees charged to students are accurate and as intended.

The Department should consider centralizing the course fee process at the Department’s
Information Technology section to provide a system-wide and consistent, rules-based,
control over this critical activity.

The Department should establish formal cost allocation policies and procedures to provide
for an accurate and fair allocation of costs to appropriate areas of the Department. The
allocation of costs should be based on a documented cost allocation plan that demonstrates a
fair balance of prorated costs based on services provided and received. Once established, the
cost allocation plan should be regularly reviewed to allow for adjustments and other
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refinements, based on changes in level of services received and costs to provide those
services.

The Department should review its current payroll and human resources processes and re-
engineer these processes to promote greater efficiency and effectiveness. This re-engineering
should include greater automation of the payroll processes, including consideration of
electronic timesheets/data entry that could allow system controls over payroll data entry and
approvals and increased data collection and reporting to support management’s needs and
minimize the need to support the payroll system with various employee information
databases.

While the Department remains on the State’s GHRS, the Department should work with the
Department of Administrative Services, Financial Data Management, to determine whether
the Department’s use of GHRS can be increased to provide management reporting that could
reduce the Department’s current practice of maintaining employee information on separate
information systems at the Department.

The Department should expand its efforts to provide clear and consistent guidance to the
Colleges.

The Department should review the financial reporting requirements it places on the Colleges,
including forms used and information reported by the Colleges to determine whether
revisions providing additional information would allow more efficient Department oversight
of financial activity of the Colleges and College compliance with Department policies and
procedures.

The Department should establish suitable policies and procedures that promote the consistent
and accurate reporting of accounts receivable by the Colleges. The Colleges should not be
expected or allowed to establish what should be Department-wide common practices without
Department concurrence and support. The Department should also provide sufficient
guidance and training to the Colleges to promote the intended implementation of those
policies and procedures. Central to these controls should be the requirement for an effective
review and approval process.

The Department should review with all Colleges the need to establish appropriate controls
over the use of fee exemptions and other adjustments to revenues collected. The Department
should consider standardizing among the seven Colleges the controls for authorization,
recording, documenting, and reviewing fee exemptions. The controls should be documented
in policies and procedures to promote full and consistent performance of the control
activities.

Controls should include processes for authorizing, entering, and reviewing fee exemptions as
well as the identification of employees authorized to enter these exemptions. The Department
should periodically review the system access permissions of individuals authorized to enter
fee exemptions to ensure that authorizations are appropriate for the employees’ current job
responsibilities.
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The Department should periodically review the level of fee exemption use for
appropriateness. This review should include inspection of documentation supporting the
application and authorization for the fee exemptions. The review should be documented.

The Department, in coordination with the Colleges, should establish policies and procedures
for making notifications required by the Acts. Included in the policies and procedures should
be procedures for periodic communication of reminders to the Colleges for the need to make
the required notifications and the communication of information back to the Department to
promote the Department’s monitoring of the Colleges’ notifications.

Auditee Response:

1.

We concur. The reports referenced in the observation were developed in house and run on
data that is housed in the Student Services Database. They consist generally of two types, one
type designed to track and report the application of payments so that cash receipts could be
recorded as revenue, even though Banner is an accrual accounting system, and those that
retrieve non financial data such as credits from the database. Before Banner Finance was
implemented, the Student Services module did not feed anywhere. The information necessary
to operate in NHIFS on the cash basis had to be created and the referenced reports did that
based on application of payments. This was a workaround necessitated by the fact that we
functioned in two different accounting systems.

The implementation of the Banner Finance module exposed some deficiencies in the
reporting but the consensus in the System was that the reports were reasonably accurate for
the short term and the only ones we had to record cash as revenue. The opinion was and is
that the in-house reports will be replaced by Banner baseline reporting and that is the road we
are on.

The reports delivered with the Banner Finance baseline product are accurate. And those are
the ones we are using to determine the status of the System. Any spreadsheets kept by the
colleges are outside of the Banner product and are for the purpose of tracking cash by
revenue type as it is transferred into NHIFS.

The second type of report dealing with non financial items has been shown to differ because
of the way items are recorded in the system. We asked the consultants to run a credit report
when our programmer was out for an extended time and his report differed from the in house
reports mainly from the manner in which information is entered into the system. Differences
such as those are identified and corrected as we move along.

We concur. The System will double check the fees in the system to ensure they properly
reflect authorized charges.

We concur. The System will revisit the agreements with the Police Standards and Training

Council and review the services provided to the Christa McAuliffe Planetarium to ensure that
those entities are charged the correct amount. The System is in the process of reviewing the
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percentage charged to the colleges to cover the cost of the System Office. Any change to the
percentage will be brought before the Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees.

4. We concur. The System concurs and will analyze current payroll and human resources
practices and develop processes or systems to enhance efficiency.

5. We concur. The colleges have been made aware of the requirement to send the state’s portion
of the comprehensive fee to the State Treasury. The System Office will monitor this revenue
source to ensure compliance.

6. We concur. The System revised its accounts receivable accrual process for fiscal year 2008.
The source of accruals was limited and reviewed by the System Office before sending it to
Administrative Services.

7. We concur. The System will establish a system for reviewing the appropriateness of fee
exemptions. The exemptions are now recorded in a contra revenue account which enables us
to review them in a more direct fashion.

8. We concur. Although each college compiles and publishes crime statistics data information
on an annual basis and such information is submitted to the U.S. Department of Education by
October 1 annually, the matter in which this information is made available to prospective and
current students and prospective and current employees varies from college to college.
Therefore, the Department will establish procedures to standardize the publication,
communication, and accessibility of such information.

Observation No. 6: Establish An Effective Control Monitoring Process

Observation:

The Department’s control monitoring process has not been properly maintained resulting in a
condition during fiscal year 2007 where control activities lost their intended effectiveness
without the Department becoming aware or taking corrective action.

Monitoring is a two-step process intended to ensure that internal controls operate effectively and
as intended by management. This involves: 1) assessments by appropriate personnel of the
design and operation of the controls on a timely basis, and 2) taking necessary actions to ensure
controls remain responsive to changes in risks and are operating effectively. Without effective
monitoring of controls, a false sense of assurance can result if controls assumed to be effective
prove not to be. For controls to remain effective, they must be subject to regular monitoring and
maintenance. Controls that operate without such management involvement often become
ineffective, as evidenced in the following instances:

1. The Department did not complete its year-end reconciliation of fiscal year 2007 federal
financial aid revenues and expenditures in its two primary information systems in a
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time frame that would provide the most utility from the reconciliation. By not
completing the year-end reconciliation until August 2008, the Department increased its risk
that errors in information recorded in the systems would not be detected and corrected in a
timely manner and that financial reporting containing erroneous information might be
utilized to make management decisions. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the
Department.

The two primary financial accounting systems used by the Department - the State accounting
system (NHIFS) and the Banner Financial Aid System (Banner) - each reported federal
financial aid revenues and expenditures during fiscal year 2007. While the Department
reports its practice is to reconcile information in the two systems three to four times a year,
there are no policies and procedures addressing the reconciliation. According to the
Department employee responsible for the reconciliation, the year-end reconciliations have
not been completed timely for the past three or four years due to delays in the year-end
closing of the Banner system.

The Colleges are inconsistent in timely reporting of payments of federal Pell Grant
funds to students. A system-wide audit test noted 42% of the Pell Grant payments to
students tested were reported outside the 30-day timeframe established for the federal student
aid program. Instances of untimely reporting were noted in the sample at all but one of the
Colleges. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

The sample selected for testing this reporting requirement contained a total of 48 items
selected from across all seven Colleges. Of the 48 items, 20 (42%) had payments that were
reported outside of the 30-day reporting time frame. Delays noted ranged from a few days
late to 372 days late.

Reasons given by the Colleges for untimely reporting included lack of training, difficulties
experienced related to the decoupling of the Colleges, and lack of timely resources.

The lack of compliance with a required change to the Colleges’ information systems
was not detected until the Colleges performed their end of fiscal year review of financial
aid activity. During the fall of 2006, the Department requested each College to make a
change in their respective student financial aid accounting systems revising a key date field.
While all registrars were directed to update the Title IV date source by making sure that
“term date” was checked and not “part-of-term dates”, only three of the Colleges made the
requested change. The instruction for registrars to update the system was communicated in a
meeting attended by the financial aid officers and not the registrars.

It is not clear why three of the Colleges made the correction and four did not, but it is likely a

breakdown in communication where the persons required to make the change were not
effectively informed that they needed to do so.
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4. Controls over changes to payroll have deteriorated, causing the intended controls to

become largely ineffective. For example:

e A lack of appropriate segregation of duties surrounding the approval of Personnel Action
Forms (PAFs) has been allowed to develop. PAFs are control documents that support
changes to payroll, including hiring and terminating employees and changes in positions
and pay rates. One employee, the Compensation and Benefits Supervisor, signs all PAFs
as both the preparer and the approver.

e The Department’s Agency Payroll Certification (APC) control, utilized to certify/approve
the biweekly payroll, has become ineffective as the employee responsible for approving
and signing the APC does so without effectively reviewing the APC.

The Department does not regularly monitor employee access to the State’s payroll
(GHRS) system for continued appropriateness.

The Department does not have an adequate procedure in place to ensure GHRS access levels
are periodically reviewed and revised when an employee with GHRS access transfers to a
position where GHRS access is no longer appropriate. We noted three employees at the
Department had inappropriate access levels in GHRS during fiscal year 2007 based upon
their current job responsibilities.

Increased financial system risks existed at three of the Colleges during fiscal year 2007
as a result of segregation of duties conflicts that developed when certain business office
responsibilities were reassigned due to vacant positions. In addition, access permissions
granted in College financial systems in all but one of the Colleges were excessive, allowing
employees who reconciled bank accounts to also have access to record, change, and delete
transactions. At one College, a single employee had near complete access to cash balances in
a training account. A similar finding was noted in the 1998 audit of the Department.

While no undetected errors or frauds related to the segregation of duties issues were noted at
these Colleges during the audit, the risk of those problems was heightened during that period
when the segregation of duties conflicts existed.

Recommendation:

The Department should implement an effective monitoring system to ensure that it and the
Colleges are adhering to Department policies and procedures.

1.

The Department should perform timely year-end revenue and expenditure reconciliations of
their information systems and monitor the results of the reconciliations to help ensure the
timely correction and detection of errors and irregularities.

The Department should establish policies and procedures for the reconciliation of financial
information recorded in NHIFS and Banner. The policies and procedures should address the
timing of the reconciliations as well as procedures for addressing inconsistent and incorrect
information.
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The Department should review with the Colleges the need to report Pell Grant payment
information in accordance with the federal program and Department requirements. The
Department should also determine the likely causes of the delays in reporting experienced by
most of the Colleges during fiscal year 2007 in order to establish appropriate additional
policies and procedures and training to promote timely reporting by the Colleges.

The Department should, as part of its internal control, implement effective monitoring of
these policies to promote the detection and correction of any future instances where Colleges
do not remain in compliance with federal program and Department regulations and policies.

The Department should improve its information and communication efforts by formalizing
its communication of policies and procedures and implementing monitoring controls to
increase the likelihood that the policies and procedures will be effectively communicated,
understood, and put into practice. Policies and procedures and changes to policies and
procedures should be communicated in writing directly to the responsible employees. The
responsible employees should be required to verify that directives for changes have been
received, understood, and implemented.

Control monitoring efforts that are implemented must increase the likelihood that the
Department will become more aware of the operating effectiveness of its control policies and
procedures. Directives for information system changes should include turn-around
documents requiring certification that directed changes have been input, satisfactorily tested,
and implemented.

The Department should reestablish effective payroll controls, including controls over the
review and approval of PAFs and APCs. The Department should establish control-
monitoring procedures to promote the timely detection of changes in control performance
and effectiveness.

Employee access to information systems should be limited to those access levels required for
current job responsibilities. Access levels should be monitored, reviewed, and appropriately
adjusted at every change in formal job responsibility. Access levels should also be reviewed
at other regular intervals to detect the potential risk imposed by informal changes in job
responsibilities that may occur without management’s direct involvement or knowledge.

The Department should direct Colleges to effectively segregate incompatible duties within
business offices and other offices processing financial transactions. If staffing constraints or
other factors do not allow effective segregation of duties, the Colleges should be encouraged
to recognize and respond to the increased risk by instituting risk mitigating procedures such
as increased management review and involvement in the affected procedures.

As part of its efforts to properly segregate duties, employees’ financial system authorities and

permissions should be reviewed to reasonably ensure that all employee access to financial
systems is considered, including excess or unintended access to automated financial systems.
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Auditee Response:

1.

We concur. The CCSNH System Office reconciles between Banner, Fina [Department
finance system], COD [federal Common Origination and Disbursement system], and G5
[federal Grant Administration and Payment System] monthly and between Banner and
NHIFS quarterly. The System Office could not finish the final fiscal year 2007 reconciliation
of the financial aid accounts until all related activity had ceased. At that time the System
finished the final reconciliation and closed the aid year.

We have requested that the Financial Aid Officers (FAO) perform their own reconciliation
on a monthly basis between Banner and COD. We have also put in place a quarterly
reconciliation worksheet that will be completed by the System Office and distributed to the
FAOs to facilitate a quarterly reconciliation of all the funds between the two offices.

We concur. The Pell Grant payment reporting was delayed for a few reasons. After the
separation of the combined colleges, it took some time for the Department of Education to
properly set up the new college identification numbers within the federal Common
Origination and Disbursement (COD) system. Also, we had some staffing changes and
vacancies which required additional training.

During 2008, we have taken measures to improve this process. In January we held a meeting
of the Financial Aid User Group (FAUG) which included the Financial Aid Administrators,
System Grants Administrator, System Financial Aid Accountant, and System Financial Aid
Compliance Department. As a result, a worksheet was developed by the System Financial
Aid Accountant to summarize the reconciliation process she was performing on a quarterly
basis to ensure that all systems (Banner Financial Aid, FINA, NHIFS, COD and G5-formerly
GAPS) are in balance. This worksheet is now communicated to the Financial Aid
Administrators and the System Financial Aid Compliance Department. This transmittal is
helping to detect any issues with Pell to COD reporting. The System Financial Aid
Compliance Department will also be implementing a process to review, on a sample basis,
student Pell disbursements and their associated reporting to COD to ensure compliance with
federal regulations.

At the April 2008 FAUG meeting, we provided COD training to all of the Financial Aid
Administrators.

We concur in part. We would like to stress that the issue was discovered by our own
personnel during the compliance review, so there was a control in place.

While the directive to modify the date span was not followed at all colleges, we believe
communication was clear. We will, however, add an additional control. When a request is
made to process a change or implement a new procedure, we will require that documentation
be submitted back to the Financial Aid Compliance Department to provide evidence of
conformity.
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Additionally, we have created a public folder for all System employees to access which will
contain policies, procedures and minutes to Financial Aid User Group minutes.

. We concur. In accordance with the State of NH payroll system (GHRS), the agencies are
responsible for the maintenance of the data for their employees and the NH Division of
Personnel and Bureau of Accounting perform the review, audit, and final approval functions
that authorize the payroll process. Accordingly, the Agency applies approvals 1 & 2, and the
NH Division of Personnel applies final approval 3 for the PAF document. Final approval by
the NH Division of Personnel is required before any personnel action is processed.

The auditor is correct that the Compensation and Benefits Supervisor signs all PAF’s as the
Agency Approval 1 and the Agency Approval 2. This approval process has been in practice
since the implementation of GHRS in 1990. As the Agency approval designates the “input &
maintenance of data”, neither the NH Division of Personnel nor the Department of
Administrative Services requires that the agency approvals be designated by two separate
persons. Within the CCSNH, the Compensation and Benefits Supervisor, who has Limited
Power of Attorney for payroll only, is designated to provide approvals 1 & 2 on PAF’s.
While we consider this practice to be in compliance with State of NH payroll procedures, we
agree that a segregation of duties over these incompatible functions should be applied.

In response to the audit observation regarding the certification/approvals of the Agency
Payroll Certification (APC) for the biweekly payroll, the Department concurs with the
auditor’s findings. To correct this deficiency, the APC’s are prepared by the designated
payroll officer and then reviewed by the Compensation and Benefits Supervisor or the
Director of Human Resources for final approval. Those APC’s prepared by the
Compensation & Benefits Supervisor are submitted to the Director of Human Resources for
final approval.

. We concur. The Department will establish procedures related to the approval and termination
of GHRS access levels for designated personnel and the periodic review of such access.

. We concur. The implementation of the Banner Finance System is changing the way
transactions are processed. As part of this change we are establishing new procedures to
handle transactions. These new procedures will include the reassignment of duties so that a
proper segregation is maintained.
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Federal Compliance Comments

Observation No. 7: Federal Financial Reporting Should Be Accurate And Timely

Observation:

Problems noted in the Colleges’ completion of FISAP (Fiscal Operations Report and
Application to Participate) reports, initially due on October 1, 2007, indicate the Department
needs to better coordinate and control this federal reporting activity.

Each year schools participating in Student Financial Assistance programs under Title IV of the
Higher Education Act must report to the federal Department of Education (DE) the fiscal year’s
final campus-based aid disbursed by type, as well as the number of students receiving such aid.
This reporting is done through the FISAP. The Fiscal Operations Report portion of the FISAP
reports activities of the Federal Perkins Loans, Federal Work Study, and Federal Supplemental
Educational Opportunity Grants campus-based programs for the previous award year and the
Application to Participate portion of the FISAP is used to apply for program participation in the
following year.

The Department does not have adequate policies and procedures in place to ensure that the
Colleges’ FISAPs are accurate, complete, and present information in a consistent manner among
the Colleges. The Colleges were not consistent in their completion of the FISAPs and did not
sufficiently review the FISAPs prior to their submissions resulting in the FISAPs having to be
resubmitted with revisions. In our review of the FISAPs originally submitted on October 1, 2007,
we noted instances where reported information did not agree with supporting documentation and
where the Colleges were inconsistent in the sources of data used to complete the FISAPs.
According to the Department, it is not clear that all of these sources had been vetted to ensure the
reported information was correct. Errors were also noted in the revised December 15, 2007
FISAPs submitted by the Colleges to amend the FISAPs previously submitted October 1, 2007.

Recommendation.:

The Department should take responsibility for ensuring that the Colleges prepare the required
FISAP reporting in an accurate, timely, and consistent manner that will ensure the Colleges
receive proper consideration by the DE in determining program operations and calculating the
Colleges’ allocations for the following program year.

The Department should establish comprehensive policies and procedures for timely completion
of the FISAPs by the Colleges and should establish the expectation that the Colleges prepare
accurate FISAPs in time for the October 1 deadline. The Colleges should not operate with the
expectation that incomplete or inaccurate reporting at October 1 is acceptable if corrected by
December 15, the ultimate reporting deadline. The policies and procedures should be sufficiently
detailed to ensure that accurate information is efficiently reported. Department-wide policies and
procedures will promote the consistent determination of information among the Colleges
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allowing for greater efficiency in the preparation and review of accurate reports, and the
Department’s review and evaluation of the operation of the Colleges.

Auditee Response:
We concur in part.

During the review of the October 1, 2007 versions of the FISAP reports, the auditors noted
inconsistent document sources have been employed by some of our colleges.

Data to fulfill FISAP reporting requirements is available from multiple sources. Some of those
sources produce results that are immaterially variant. The Community College System of New
Hampshire has relied on a review of these data sources for reasonableness.

We agree that the October 1** FISAP submission should be rigorously and comprehensively
prepared and reviewed prior to submission. It should be noted, however, that the required data
systems/sources are not always fully reconciled/available to allow for completion by October 1st.

Nevertheless, we do agree that comprehensive policies and procedures for the timely completion
of the FISAP must be established. We have created a new position within the Community
College System’s Financial Aid Compliance Department — Financial Aid Programs and
Compliance Specialist. Working with the Director of Financial Aid Compliance and the seven
College Financial Aid Directors, the individual in this position will be charged with reviewing
and analyzing data sources, creating procedures for FISAP preparation, and coordinating the
implementation of the procedures.

These procedures will include the use of consistent data sources for all seven colleges.

Additionally, an independent review will be performed prior to the October 1* and December
15™ FISAP submissions.

Observation No. 8: Controls Over Changes To Financial Aid Information System Should
Be Improved

Observation:

Corrections to student data resulting from the verification process were not consistently
reprocessed through the U.S. Department of Education’s (DE) central processing unit at three
colleges, contrary to federal program requirements and Department control policy.

Federal administrative law 34 CFR 668, Subpart E, governs the verification by institutions of
information submitted by applicants for student financial assistance at the institution being
attended. The law is in place to ensure that financial aid is awarded based upon correct
information that the applicants provide. The DE selects certain applicants who must submit
certain information (U.S. Tax Returns, untaxed income, number in household, etc.) to the
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institution in order to verify that the information reported for determining eligibility and awards
for financial aid is correct.

Notwithstanding certain inconsequential exceptions, changes in a financial aid applicant’s
information are required to be resubmitted through DE’s Central Processing System (CPS).

We noted instances at three of the seven Colleges where unexpected discrepancies existed
between data in the student’s Institutional Student Information Record (ISIR) and documentation
obtained through the verification process. We noted one instance in a sample of 12 (8%) verified
files in Nashua, two instances in a sample of 15 (13%) verified files in Manchester, and six
instances in a sample of 12 (50%) verified files in Stratham where the verified, corrected student
information was not reprocessed through the CPS and errors in award amounts resulted. While
the noted errors in award amounts were relatively insignificant to the Department’s program and
netted to approximately $200, any error in award amounts can affect a student’s ability to attend
a program.

According to the Department, a system override was enabled in the Banner financial aid systems
at the three Colleges where the errors were noted allowing payments to be made prior to an
agreement of information in the ISIR and the Banner systems. Had the override not been
enabled, the likelihood that disbursements could have been made prior to the resolution of any
differences would have been greatly reduced. It is not clear whether enabling the override was an
intentional setting or was an oversight.

Because it was assumed the Banner system would prevent payments when amounts did not
agree, there were no additional controls established to ensure amounts agreed prior to
disbursement. These processing errors and the subsequent rejections of changes were detected at
one College during the year-end verification file review. The problem at the other two Colleges
went unnoticed until the audit.

Recommendation.:

The Department should implement appropriate policies and procedures to ensure the controls in
the Banner financial aid system are established and operating as intended at each of the Colleges.
The policies and procedures should include establishing a centralized Department authority for
making changes to the operation of the Banner systems to lessen the likelihood that individual
Colleges will make unauthorized changes to the system exposing the Department to unforeseen
risk.

The Department should review the circumstances that allowed the override to be engaged at the
three Colleges during fiscal year 2007 to determine whether additional formal channels of
communication or training are necessary to lessen the likelihood of similar problems occurring in
the future.

The Department should revise its existing policies and procedures to ensure that all changes to

student data that are required by the program to be reprocessed through the CPS, are in fact
reprocessed in a timely manner.
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Auditee Response:
We concur in part.

Verification is complete when each college has all the requested documentation. While we
typically do make all changes through CPS, federal regulations do not require that all verification
corrections be reprocessed through CPS. There are cases when the student can be paid without
waiting for corrections to be reprocessed — for instance, if the aid amount doesn’t change.
According to the Federal Student Aid Handbook (Application and Verification Guide 2006-07) if
the Pell Grant aid amount doesn’t change or, for Campus-based and Stafford/PLUS programs, if
the college bases the award on its own recalculation of the EFC, CPS corrections are not
necessary. Only in the case where a data match item must be changed (non-dollar data such as
household size or number in college) must a correction always be reprocessed through CPS.

The Community College System relies on the controls and edits in the SCT BANNER system,
which is reviewed and reconditioned annually in accordance with federal regulation updates and
modifications. Recalculations through SCT BANNER are considered to mirror those of CPS.
There was no intentional disregard of CPS or SCT BANNER controls.

To minimize risk for awarding inaccurately, the System will ensure that an award is not
disbursed if the ISIR and SCT BANNER are not in agreement unless special circumstances exist
and the disbursement is authorized through the System Financial Aid Compliance Department.
The Information Technology Department has reviewed the override capabilities and researched
the circumstances that permitted the overrides noted at Stratham, Manchester, and Nashua and
recommended procedural changes.

Within the CCSNH system wide process for Second Review of Verification, a procedure has
been added for comparing the ISIR and SCT BANNER EFCs to ensure their agreement. This
addition was effective for the 0708 review. SCT BANNER security will also be modified to
eliminate the capability for system users to revise the rule forms that allowed the override. Only
IT staff will be permitted to make these changes when necessary, after review by operational
staff and Financial Aid Compliance. When each Financial Aid new award year set-up is
completed, each college’s entries will be reviewed for accuracy by Financial Aid Compliance
prior to commencing the new aid year processing.

We will also adapt procedures to ensure that all CPS reprocessing is completed in an accurate
and timely manner.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To The Fiscal Committee Of The General Court:

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General and
Capital Projects Funds and Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Student Activity
Accounts of the New Hampshire Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges
(Department) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Department. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Department’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Department are intended to present certain
financial activity of only that portion of the State of New Hampshire that is attributable to the
transactions of the Department. The financial statements do not purport to and do not constitute a
complete financial presentation of either the Department or the State of New Hampshire in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, except for the matter discussed in the third paragraph, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, certain financial activity of the
Department for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

40



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures - General and Capital Projects Funds and the Statement of Changes in Assets and
Liabilities - Student Activity Accounts of the Department. The supplementary information, as
identified in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements except for the Prior Period
Expenditures, Total Expenditures, and Unexpended Budget amounts as listed on the Schedule of
Budget and Actual Expenditures - Capital Projects Fund. The Prior Period Expenditures, Total
Expenditures, and Unexpended Budget amounts have not been subject to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and accordingly we express no opinion on them.
In our opinion, except for the financial information described in the preceding sentence, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
September 11, 2008 on our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Office Of Legislative Budget Assistant

September 11, 2008
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
GENERAL AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

General Capital Projects
Revenues Fund Fund Total
Tuition $ 44,548,309 $ -0- $ 44,548,309
Federal Funds 8,401,131 -0- 8,401,131
UNIQUE Plan Endowment (Note 6) 1,287,700 -0- 1,287,700
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,215,492 -0- 2,215,492
Center For Training And Business Development 1,085,495 -0- 1,085,495
Private And Local Funds 1,222,843 -0- 1,222,843
Other Grant Revenue 216,409 -0- 216,409
Total Revenues 58,977,379 -0- 58,977,379
Expenditures
Salaries And Benefits 61,025,892 -0- 61,025,892
Grants/Loans To Students 7,892,635 -0- 7,892,635
Current Expenses 7,487,139 -0- 7,487,139
Consultants 1,668,100 -0- 1,668,100
Equipment 1,301,728 -0- 1,301,728
UNIQUE Plan Endowment (Note 6) 1,287,700 -0- 1,287,700
Buildings And Grounds 1,250,689 -0- 1,250,689
Library Support/Computers 1,211,363 -0- 1,211,363
Tuition Stabilization Expense 800,000 -0- 800,000
Other Expenditures 784,666 -0- 784,666
Debt Service 732,885 -0- 732,885
Travel 626,926 -0- 626,926
Grants To Subrecipients 430,241 -0- 430,241
Staff Development 294,041 -0- 294,041
New Buildings -0- 10,716,505 10,716,505
Renovations/Other -0- 5,718,321 5,718,321
Total Expenditures 86,794,005 16,434,826 103,228,831
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (27,816,626) (16,434,826) (44,251,452)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Appropriations 27,816,626 16,434,826 44,251,452
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUND

STUDENT ACTIVITY ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Student Activity Accounts

Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents (Note 2):
Concord Campus
Stratham Campus
Nashua Campus
Manchester Campus
Laconia Campus
Claremont Campus
Berlin Campus

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Custodial Funds Payable:
Concord Campus
Stratham Campus
Nashua Campus
Manchester Campus
Laconia Campus
Claremont Campus
Berlin Campus

Total Custodial Funds Payable

Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2006 Additions Deletions June 30,2007
322,692 $ 856,293 $ 808,099 $ 370,886
151,700 182,262 136,826 197,136
119,708 338471 323,421 134,758
109,786 227,129 204,493 132,422
74,897 103,753 62,538 116,112
112,515 128,479 94,288 146,706
23,128 47,402 58,579 11,951
914,426 1,883,789 1,688,244 1,109,971
914,426 $1,883,789 $1,688,244 $ 1,109,971
322,692 $ 856,293 $ 808,099 $ 370,886
151,700 182,262 136,826 197,136
119,708 338471 323,421 134,758
109,786 227,129 204,493 132,422
74,897 103,753 62,538 116,112
112,515 128,479 94,288 146,706
23,128 47.402 58,579 11,951
914,426 1,883,789 1,688,244 1,109,971
914,426 $1,883,789 $1,688,244 $ 1,109,971




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the New Hampshire Department of Regional
Community-Technical Colleges have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the primary standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges (Department) is an organizational
unit of the primary government of the State of New Hampshire. The accompanying financial
statements report certain financial activity of the Department excluding the Police Standards and
Training Council, the Christa McAuliffe Planetarium, and the New Hampshire Community-
Technical Colleges Foundation.

The financial activity of the Department is accounted for and reported in the State’s General,
Capital Projects, and Fiduciary Funds in the State of New Hampshire’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Assets, liabilities, and fund balances are reported by fund for the State
as a whole in the CAFR. The Department, as a part of the primary government, accounts for only
a small portion of the General and Capital Projects Funds and those assets, liabilities, and fund
balances as reported in the CAFR that are attributable to the Department cannot be determined.
Accordingly, the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General and Capital
Projects Funds is not intended to show the financial position of the Department or the changes in
its fund balances for the General and Capital Projects Funds.

B. Financial Statement Presentation

The State of New Hampshire and the Department use funds to report on their financial position
and the results of their operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance
and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government
functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. The Department reports its financial activity in the funds described below:

Governmental Fund Types:

General Fund: The General Fund accounts for all financial transactions not specifically
accounted for in any other fund. All revenues of governmental funds, other than certain
designated revenues, are credited to the General Fund. Annual expenditures that are not allocated
by law to other funds are charged to the General Fund.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for certain capital
improvement appropriations which are or will be primarily funded by the issuance of state bonds
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or notes, other than bonds or notes for highway or turnpike purposes, or by the application of
certain federal matching grants.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Agency Funds: Agency funds report assets and liabilities for deposits and investments entrusted
to the State as an agent for others.

C. Measurement Focus And Basis Of Accounting

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay the liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, except for federal grants, the State generally considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, expenditures related to debt service, compensated absences, and claims and judgments
are recorded only when payment is due.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

D. Budget Control And Reporting
General Budget Policies

The statutes of the State of New Hampshire require the Governor to submit a biennial budget to
the Legislature for adoption. This budget, which includes a separate budget for each year of the
biennium, consists of three parts: Part I is the Governor's program for meeting all expenditure
needs and estimating revenues. There is no constitutional or statutory requirement that the
Governor propose, or that the Legislature adopt, a budget that does not resort to borrowing. Part
IT is a detailed breakdown of the budget at the department level for appropriations to meet the
expenditure needs of the government. Part III consists of draft appropriation bills for the
appropriations made in the proposed budget.

The operating budget is prepared principally on a modified cash basis and adopted for the
governmental and proprietary fund types with the exception of the Capital Projects Fund. The
Capital Projects Fund budget represents individual projects that extend over several fiscal years.
Since the Capital Projects Fund comprises appropriations for multi-year projects, it is not
included in the budget and actual comparison schedule in the State of New Hampshire CAFR.

In addition to the enacted biennial operating budget, the Governor may submit to the Legislature
supplemental budget requests to meet expenditures during the current biennium. Appropriation
transfers can be made within a department without the approval of the Legislature; therefore, the
legal level of budgetary control is at the department level.

Additional fiscal control procedures are maintained by both the Executive and Legislative
Branches of government. The Executive Branch, represented by the Commissioner of the
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Department of Administrative Services, is directed to continually monitor the State’s financial
operations, needs, and resources, and to maintain an integrated financial accounting system. The
Legislative Branch, represented by the Joint Legislative Fiscal Committee, the Joint Legislative
Capital Budget Overview Committee, and the Office of Legislative Budget Assistant, monitors
compliance with the budget and the effectiveness of budgeted programs.

Unexpended balances of appropriations at year-end will lapse to undesignated fund balance and
be available for future appropriations unless they have been encumbered or legally defined as
non-lapsing, which means the balances are reported as reservation of fund balance. The balance
of unexpended encumbrances is brought forward into the next fiscal year. Capital Projects Fund
unencumbered appropriations lapse in two years unless extended or designated as non-lapsing by
law.

Contracts and purchasing commitments are recorded as encumbrances when the contract or
purchase order is executed. Upon receipt of goods or services, the encumbrance is liquidated and
the expenditure and liability are recorded. The Department’s unliquidated encumbrance balances
in the General and Capital Projects Funds at June 30, 2007 were $3,242,377 and $13,228,271,
respectively.

A Budget To Actual Schedule - General Fund and a Schedule of Budget and Expenditures -
Capital Projects Fund are included as supplementary information.

E. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent short-term investments with original maturities less than three months
from the date acquired by the State.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Department maintains 31 demand deposits (checking accounts), 24 of which are for
processing tuition payments from students made by cash, credit card, or other electronic means.
The Department is also the custodian of seven Student Activity checking accounts that are
maintained in an agency capacity for the deposit, retention, and disbursement of funds to various
student organizations and to pay for such events as graduation ceremonies. The checking
accounts are held at the individual campuses.

Deposits

The Department has not developed a policy relating to deposits that are exposed to custodial
credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, deposits held in an
agency capacity may not be recovered.

As of June 30, 2007, the Department’s carrying amount for deposits in the Student Activity
accounts was $1,109,971. The table below details the Department’s bank balances at June 30,
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2007 in the Student Activity accounts and the College operating accounts exposed to custodial
credit risk:

Demand Deposits
At June 30,2007

Account Uninsured /
Student Activity  Operating Total Insured Uncollateralized
College
Concord $ 343,872 $ 483,137 § 827,009 $ 100,000 $ 727,009
Stratham 198,443 206,056 404,499 100,000 304,499
Nashua 129,168 675,471 804,639 100,000 704,639
Manchester 123,599 124,685 248,284 100,000 148,284
Laconia 84,520 89,687 174,207 100,000 74,207
Claremont 77,580 203,471 281,051 100,000 181,051
Berlin 11,952 103,296 115,248 100,000 15,248
Total $ 969,134 $1,885,803 $2,854,937 $700,000 $ 2,154,937

The difference between the carrying amount of demand deposits as reported by the Department
($1,109,971) and the bank balances in the Student Activity accounts as noted above consists of
checks and deposits which have not cleared the bank as of June 30, 2007 as well as amounts
collected and deposited in College accounts that have not been transferred to the State Treasury
and recorded in State revenue accounts. The accompanying financial statements do not include
the reported carrying amount for the College Operating accounts.

NOTE 3 - AGENCY FUNDS

The Department acts as custodian for funds of various student clubs and organizations and
reports these funds on the accompanying financial statements as agency funds, a fiduciary fund
type. Each College maintains a separate Student Activity checking account. Additions to the
Student Activity accounts include primarily student activity fees and profits from fund raising
activities. Deletions from the Student Activity accounts are controlled in part by the Student
Senate and are used for student activities, such as dances or other special events.

NOTE 4 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
New Hampshire Retirement System

The Department, as an organization of the State government, participates in the New Hampshire
Retirement System (Plan). The Plan is a contributory defined-benefit pension plan and covers the
majority of full-time employees of the Department. The Plan qualifies as a tax-exempt
organization under Sections 401 (a) and 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. RSA 100-A
established the Plan and the contribution requirements. The Plan, which is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), is divided into two
membership groups. Group I consists of State and local employees and teachers. Group II
consists of firefighters and police officers. All assets are in a single trust and are available to pay
retirement benefits to all members.
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Group I members at age 60 qualify for a normal service retirement allowance based on years of
creditable service and average final compensation (AFC). The yearly pension amount is 1/60
(1.67%) of AFC multiplied by years of creditable service. AFC is defined as the average of the
three highest salary years. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated at 1/66 (1.5%) of
AFC multiplied by years of creditable service. Members in service with ten or more years of
creditable service who are between ages 50 and 60 or members in service with at least 20 or
more years of service, whose combination of age and service is 70 or more, are entitled to a
retirement allowance with appropriate graduated reduction based on years of creditable service.

Group II members who are age 60, or members who are at least age 45 with at least 20 years of
creditable service can receive a retirement allowance at a rate of 2.5% of AFC for each year of
creditable service, not to exceed 40 years.

All covered Department employees are members of Group 1.

Members of both groups may qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances, and
death benefit allowances subject to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based
on AFC or earnable compensation, service, or both.

The Plan is financed by contributions from the members, the State and local employers, and
investment earnings. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, Group I members were
required to contribute 5% and group II members were required to contribute 9.3% of gross
earnings. The State funds 100% of the employer cost for all of the Department’s employees
enrolled in the Plan. The annual contribution required to cover any normal cost beyond the
employee contribution is determined every two years based on the Plan’s actuary.

The Department’s payments for normal contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
amounted to 6.81% of the covered payroll for its Group I employees. The Department’s normal
contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 were $2,354,072.

A special account was established by RSA 100-A:16, II (h) for additional benefits. The account
is credited with all the earnings of the account assets in the account plus the earnings of the
remaining assets of the plan in excess of the assumed rate of return plus 'z of 1%.

The New Hampshire Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that may be
obtained by writing to them at 54 Regional Drive, Concord, NH 03301 or from their web site at
http://www.nhrs.org.

Health Insurance For Retired Employees

In addition to providing pension benefits, RSA 21-1:30 specifies that the State provide certain
health care benefits for retired employees and their spouses within the limits of the funds
appropriated at each legislative session. These benefits include group hospitalization, hospital
medical care, and surgical care. Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or
before June 30, 2003 may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic basis rather than a lump
sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires State Group I employees hired
after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of State service in order to qualify for health insurance
benefits. These and similar benefits for active employees are authorized by RSA 21-1:30 and
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provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk Management Fund, which is the State’s
self-insurance fund implemented in October 2003 for active State employees and retirees. The
State recognizes the cost of providing these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis by paying
actuarially determined contributions into the fund. The New Hampshire Retirement System’s
medical premium subsidy program for Group I and Group II employees also contributes to the
fund.

The cost of the health benefits for the Department’s retired employees and spouses is a budgeted
amount paid from an appropriation made to the administrative organization of the New
Hampshire Retirement System. Accordingly, the cost of health benefits for retired Department
employees and spouses is not included in the Department’s financial statements.

NOTE S - FEDERAL FUNDS

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) on page 58 is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis. The expenditures presented in the Schedule are presented on the
cash basis of accounting; expenditures are recorded when paid rather than when the obligation is
incurred.

NOTE 6 - UNIQUE PLAN ENDOWMENT

The Department participates in the New Hampshire College Tuition Savings Plan’s UNIQUE
Endowment Allocation Program (Program), as described in N.H. Admin Rule, Csp 700. The
Program has been designed to fulfill the statutory obligation in RSA 6:38 to provide eligible
New Hampshire institutions of higher education with endowment allocations, the earnings from
which shall be used to provide awards to New Hampshire residents who are attending the
participating institution.

The Department records the receipt of Program allocations as Department revenue when
received. In accordance with a memorandum of understanding between the Department and the
New Hampshire Community Technical Colleges Foundation (Foundation), the Foundation acts
as the Department’s administering and fiduciary agent for the Department’s participation in the
Program. The Department records the subsequent payment of the Program allocation to the
Foundation as a Department expenditure when paid.

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT - ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMMUNITY
COLLEGE SYSTEM OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Chapter 361:2, Laws of 2007, effective July 17, 2007, repealed and reenacted RSA 188-F:1
through RSA 188-F:21-a, reorganizing the administration and governance of the Department of
Regional Community-Technical Colleges. Chapter 361 transformed the Department from a State
agency to a body politic and corporate and changed the name of the Department to the
Community College System of New Hampshire. Chapter 361 also delegated broad authority to
the Board of Trustees of the Community College System to manage the Community College
System of New Hampshire in a manner which promotes academic excellence and serves the
community needs of the people of New Hampshire.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues
Tuition
Federal Funds (Note 2)
UNIQUE Plan Endowment
Miscellaneous Revenue
Center For Training And Business Development
Private And Local Funds
Other Grant Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Salaries And Benefits

Grants/Loans To Students (Note 2)
Current Expenses
Consultants

Equipment

UNIQUE Plan Endowment
Buildings And Grounds
Library Support/Computers
Tuition Stabilization Expense
Other Expenditures

Debt Service

Travel

Grants To Subrecipients
Staff Development

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

Favorable
Original (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance
$ 45,090,539 $ 44,548,309 $ (542,230)
24,673,367 8,401,131 (16,272,236)
-0- 1,287,700 1,287,700
1,022,882 2,215,492 1,192,610
2,125,895 1,085,495 (1,040,400)
1,970,071 1,222,843 (747,228)
4,050,179 216,409 (3,833,770)
78,932,933 58,977,379 (19,955,554)
61,294,902 61,025,892 269,010
24,417,744 7,892,635 16,525,109
7,700,614 7,487,139 213,475
206,610 1,668,100 (1,461,490)
1,549,211 1,301,728 247,483
-0- 1,287,700 (1,287,700)
1,638,296 1,250,689 387,607
1,049,459 1,211,363 (161,904)
-0- 800,000 (800,000)
4,848,533 784,666 4,063,867
748,598 732,885 15,713
411,849 626,926 (215,077)
7,000 430,241 (423,241)
265,017 294,041 (29,024)
104,137,833 86,794,005 17,343,828
(25,204,900) (27,816,626) (2,611,726)
25,204,900 27,816,626 (2,611,726)
$ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
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Notes To The Budget To Actual Schedule - General Fund
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Note 1 - General Budget Policies

The statutes of the State of New Hampshire require the Governor to submit a biennial budget to
the Legislature for adoption. This budget, which includes annual budgets for each year of the
biennium, consists of three parts: Part I is the Governor's program for meeting all expenditure
needs as well as estimating revenues to be received. There is no constitutional or statutory
requirement that the Governor propose, or the Legislature adopt, a budget that does not resort to
borrowing. Part Il is a detailed breakdown of the budget at the department level for
appropriations to meet the expenditure needs of the government. Part III consists of draft
appropriation bills for the appropriations made in the proposed budget.

The operating budget is prepared principally on a modified cash basis and adopted for the
governmental and proprietary fund types with the exception of the Capital Projects Fund.

The New Hampshire biennial budget is composed of the initial operating budget, supplemented
by additional appropriations. These additional appropriations and estimated revenues from
various sources are authorized by Governor and Council action, annual session laws, and
existing statutes which require appropriations under certain circumstances.

The budget, as reported in the Budget To Actual Schedule, reports the initial operating budget
for fiscal year 2007 as passed by the Legislature in Chapter 176, Laws of 2005.

Budgetary control is at the department level. All departments are authorized to transfer
appropriations within their departments with the prior approval of the Joint Legislative Fiscal
Committee and the Governor and Council. Additional fiscal control procedures are maintained
by both the Executive and Legislative Branches of government. The Executive Branch,
represented by the Commissioner of the Department of Administrative Services, is directed to
continually monitor the State’s financial system. The Legislative Branch, represented by the
Joint Legislative Fiscal Committee, the Joint Legislative Capital Budget Overview Committee,
and the Office of Legislative Budget Assistant, monitors compliance with the budget and the
effectiveness of budgeted programs.

Unexpended balances of appropriations at year-end will lapse to undesignated fund balance and
be available for future appropriations unless they have been encumbered or are legally defined as
non-lapsing accounts.

Variances - Favorable/(Unfavorable)

The variance column on the Budget To Actual Schedule highlights differences between the
original operating budget for fiscal year 2007 and the actual revenues and expenditures for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Actual revenues exceeding budget or actual expenditures being
less than budget generate a favorable variance. Actual revenues being less than budget or actual
expenditures exceeding budget cause an unfavorable variance.

The unfavorable expenditure variances shown on the Budget to Actual Schedule represent the
difference between the actual expenditures incurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
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and the original budget in place at the beginning of fiscal year 2007. The unfavorable
expenditure variances do not represent expenditures incurred in excess of appropriations because
the original budget amounts do not include supplemental appropriations. The State and the
Department use supplemental appropriations to add appropriations to original budget amounts to
reflect changes in levels of operations not provided for in the original budget. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007, the Department’s original expenditure budget amounts were
supplemented by $5,462,818 of additional appropriations.

Note 2 - Federal Funds And Grants/Loans To Students

The Department’s fiscal year 2007 budget included $13 million of federal revenues and $13
million of grants/loans to students related to the federal Workforce Investment Act cluster of
programs. The responsibility for these programs was transferred to the Department of Labor in
January of 2006. Because no revenues were received and no expenditures were incurred by the
Department related to this cluster of programs during fiscal year 2007, the fiscal year 2007
estimated revenues and budgeted expenditures for this cluster of programs appear as unfavorable
revenue variances and favorable expenditure variances on the Department’s Budget To Actual
Schedule - General Fund.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
(Unaudited)
Expenditures Unexpended
Chapter Law. Program Budget Fiscal 2007 Prior Years Total Budget
Chapter 202:1, IV, Laws Of 2001
System Maintenance - Statewide $ 705,000 $ 47,122 $§ 608460 $ 655582 § 49,418
New Academic Building - Laconia (Design) 600,000 4,634 543,865 548,499 51,501
Computer System Upgrades 600,000 -0- 587,048 587,048 12,952
Chapter 240:1, 11, Laws Of 2003
Library Expansion - Academic Program
Support - Stratham 2,373,000 -0- 2,499 2,499 2,370,501
Library Addition - Design - Claremont 125,000 2,174 122,763 124,937 63
Ventilation - Berlin 307,000 -0- 302,476 302,476 4,524
Student Residence Hall Rehabilitation - Concord 270,000 -0- 253,820 253,820 16,180
New Academic Building - Laconia 5,500,000 192,766 5,220,371 5,413,137 86,863
Critical Repairs 1,252,000 267,717 572,607 840,324 411,676
Chapter 259:1, III, Laws Of 2005
Critical Maintenance - Concord 965,000 424,698 16,411 441,109 523,891
Critical Maintenance - Berlin/Laconia 1,500,000 84,561 144,757 229,318 1,270,682
Critical Maintenance - Nashua/Claremont 1,200,000 577,833 339,667 917,500 282,500
Critical Maintenance - Manchester/Stratham 900,000 -0- -0- -0- 900,000
Nursing Education Center - Design 250,000 231,273 13,726 244,999 5,001
Library Learning Resource Center - Claremont 1,800,000 1,640,662 21,811 1,662,473 137,527
Health Education And Tech. Center - Manchester 9,100,000 7,591,978 43,825 7,635,803 1,464,197
Pease Building Renovations 2,835,000 2,369,383 106,680 2,476,063 358,937
Chapter 259:1, X, Laws Of 2005
Information Technology:
Single Banner Database 581,600 401,317 109,491 510,808 70,792
Classroom Networks 466,640 132,177 258,696 390,873 75,767
Campus Administrative Servers 147,500 38,465 30,739 69,204 78,296
Chapter 259:15, I, Laws Of 2005
Renovation Of Cafeteria - Nashua 297,000 147,000 -0- 147,000 150,000
Student Wellness Center - Nashua 6,531,000 1,053,018 569 1,053,587 5,477,413
Sweeney Hall Snack Bar, Patio And
Auditorium Renovations - Concord 1,007,000 913,872 23,500 937,372 69,628
Residence Hall Suites - NHTI Concord 7,259,000 -0- -0- -0- 7,259,000
Little Hall Dining Services Renovation - Concord 1,928,000 268,377 -0- 268,377 1,659,623
Chapter 264:1, IV, Laws Of 2007
Information Technology - Standardize Systemwide
Network Architecture 1,000,000 45,799 -0- 45,799 954,201
Total $ 49,499,740 $16434826 $9,323,781 $ 25,758,607 $23,741,133
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND BY LOCATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues
Tuition
Federal Funds
UNIQUE Plan Endowment
Miscellaneous Revenue
Center For Training And Business Development
Private And Local Funds
Other Grant Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Salaries And Benefits

Grants/Loans To Students
Current Expenses
Consultants

Equipment

UNIQUE Plan Endowment
Buildings And Grounds
Library Support/Computers
Tuition Stabilization Expense
Other Expenditures

Debt Service

Travel

Grants To Subrecipients
Staff Development

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses

System
Office Manchester Stratham
$ 2,997,380 $ 5,883,642 4,651,568
100,585 1,671,992 1,827,281
1,287,700 -0- -0-
48,233 135,069 141,599
-0- 92,838 471,147
289,529 (2,378) 240,130
-0- 5,795 5,132
4,723,427 7,786,958 7,336,857
3,438,883 8,787,681 6,605,925
577,819 1,237,682 879,664
574,659 870,903 783,065
511,884 105,032 253,578
330,301 249,693 143,039
1,287,700 -0- -0-
122,481 76,260 52,612
-0- 393,376 115,427
800,000 -0- -0-
605,289 49,188 55,480
-0- -0- -0-
60,650 75,696 71,516
-0- -0- 411,320
26,063 9,140 144,172
8,335,729 11,854,651 9,515,798
(3,612,302) (4,067,693) (2,178,941)
3,612,302 4,067,693 2,178,941
$ -0- $ -0- -0-
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Combined

Concord Berlin Laconia Claremont Nashua Total

15,285,670  $ 2,886,534 $ 3,831,679 $ 2,940,980 $ 6,070,856  § 44,548,309

1,486,072 1,052,471 598,964 560,909 1,102,857 8,401,131
-0- 0- -0- 0- -0- 1,287,700
879,830 321,821 371,070 104,734 213,136 2,215,492
277,560 44,522 134,557 63,808 1,063 1,085,495
639,964 55,598 -0- -0- -0- 1,222,843
110,985 81,999 4,090 3,295 5113 216,409
18,680,081 4,442,945 4,940,360 3,673,726 7,393,025 58,977,379
18,759,823 5,277,489 5,723,838 5,079,681 7,352,572 61,025,892
1,914,593 846,937 702,629 638,814 1,094,497 7,892,635
2,666,897 672,579 600,212 584,406 734,418 7,487,139
7,500 184,277 -0- -0- 605,829 1,668,100
161,399 129,185 211,066 62,341 14,704 1,301,728
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,287,700
809,489 28,739 105,567 28,711 26,830 1,250,689
386,636 51,446 109,961 48,707 105,810 1,211,363
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 800,000
21,688 34,404 7,019 4,617 6,981 784,666
732,885 -0- -0- -0- -0- 732,885
223,465 93,991 46,949 20,911 33,748 626,926
18,921 -0- -0- -0- -0- 430,241
61,279 6,858 15,236 12,477 18,816 294,041
25,764,575 7,325,905 7,522,477 6,480,665 9,994,205 86,794,005

(7,084,494) (2,882,960) (2,582,117) (2,806,939) (2,601,180) (27,816,626)
7,084,494 2,882,960 2,582,117 2,806,939 2,601,180 27,816,626

0- S 0- 0- 8 0- 3 0- S -0-
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES — CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BY LOCATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

System
Office Manchester Stratham Concord
Expenditures
New Buildings $ -0- $ 7,591,978 $ -0- $ 231,273
Renovations/Other 1,594,991 -0- 2,369,383 1,606,947
Total Expenditures $ 1,594,991 $7,591,978 $ 2,369,383 $ 1,838,220

56



Combined

Berlin Laconia Claremont Nashua Total

$ -0- $ 197,400 $ 1,642,836 $ 1,053,018 $ 10,716,505
-0- -0- -0- 147,000 5,718,321

$ -0- $ 197,400 $ 1,642,836 $1,200,018 $ 16,434,826
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL COMMUNITY-TECHNICAL COLLEGES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS)

Federal
Catalog
Number

14.246

17.261

39.999

47.076

84.007

84.031
84.032
84.033
84.038
84.042
84.063
84.116

84.375

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Federal Grantor

Federal Program Title Expenditures

U.S. Department Of Housing And Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants /
Brownfields Economic Development
Initiative

U.S. Department Of Labor
WIA Pilots, Demonstrations, And Research
Projects

General Services Administration
Aircraft Maintenance Center For Excellence

National Science Foundation
Education And Human Resources

U.S. Department Of Education

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity
Grant

Higher Education - Institutional Aid

Federal Family Education Loans (Note 1)

Federal Work-Study Program

Federal Perkins Loan Program (Note 1)

TRIO - Student Support Services

Federal Pell Grant Program

Fund For The Improvement Of Postsecondary
Education

Academic Competitiveness Grants

Total

The accompanying note is an integral part of this schedule.
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Pass Thru
Percent
$ 114,986 0%
478,915 34%
315,469 0%
904,478 61%
180,745 0%
484,447 0%
21,892,207 0%
256,018 0%
231,685 0%
251,642 0%
5,182,871 0%
100,585 0%
41,925 0%
$30,435,973



Notes To The Schedule Of Expenditures Of Federal Awards (Cash Basis)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Note 1 - Federal Student Loan Programs

The total expenditures shown for the Federal Family Education Loans (CFDA No. 84.032) and
the Federal Perkins Loan Program (CFDA No. 84.038) represent the total amount of loans made
to students during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Total loans outstanding as for June 30,
2007 for the Perkins Loan Program equaled $1,340,112. The total loans outstanding under the
Federal Family Education Loans program are not readily available. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007, the Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges processed the
following amounts of new loans under the Federal Family Education Loans program.

Stafford Subsidized $10,430,398
Stafford Unsubsidized 9,879,974
Parents' Loan For Undergraduate Students 1,581,835

$21,892.207

According to federal program guidelines, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
reports Federal Family Education Loan guarantees as expenditures. Because the Department
does not make expenditures related to guarantees, the Department’s financial statements do not
report the Federal Family Education Loan guarantees as Department expenditures.
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APPENDIX - CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

The following is a summary, as of September 11, 2008, of the current status of the observations
contained in the audit report of the Department of Regional Community-Technical Colleges for
the nine months ended March 31, 1998. A summary of the prior report can be accessed on-line at
www.gencourt.state.nh.us/lba/audit.html. A copy of the prior report can be obtained from the
Office of Legislative Budget Assistant, Audit Division, 107 North Main Street, State House
Room 102, Concord, NH 03301-4906.

Status
Internal Control Comments
Material Weaknesses
1. Significant Deficiencies In The Revenue Collection Process (See Current o O O
Observation Nos. 3, 4, and 6)
2. Lack of Documentation To Support Fixed Assets Valuation Y e O

Other Reportable Conditions
3. Weaknesses In Department Billing Procedures
4. Increased Controls Needed Over The Finance System

5. Internal Auditor Position Not Being Utilized For Its Intended Purpose (See
Current Observation No. 2)
6. Overstatement Of Agency Fund Activity

7. No Written Policy Over Student Activity Account Disbursements (See
Current Observation No. 2)
8. Unwritten Agreement With SAU #36 To Reimburse Payroll Costs

State Compliance Comments

e 6 o o o o
e O € O o o
e O e O o o

9. Lack Of Records Retention Policies And Procedures e o o
10. Statutorily Required Reports Not Filed Timely e o O
Federal Compliance Comments
11. Lack Of Documentation To Support Charges To
.- . ([ o ([
Transitions/Transformations Program
12. Various Instances Of Noncompliance With Student Financial Aid e o O

Requirements (See Current Observation No. 6)

13. Noncompliance With Reporting Requirements Of The Campus Security
Act And Drug-Free Schools And Communities Act (See Current O O O
Observation No. 5)

Management Issues Comments

14. Lack Of A Disaster Contingency Plan (See Current Observation No. 3) e O O

15. Lack Of Support For The 5.5% Administrative Charge Calculation (See
Current Observation No. 5)

16. Year 2000 Compliance Readiness e o o
Status Key Count

Fully Resolved e o o 7

Substantially Resolved e o O 3

Partially Resolved e O O 3

Unresolved O O O 3
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LRGHealthcare

care. compassion. community.

May 7, 2012

Kathy Bogle Shields

NH Community Development Finance Authority
14 Dixon Ave Suite 102

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Kathy:

I am pleased to submit this letter of commitment for job creation associated with Belknap
County’s CDBG Economic Development grant application for training equipment for the
nursing program at Lakes Region Community College. LRGH commits to promoting five (5)
Licensed Nursing Assistants or Licensed Practical Nurses currently employed by LRGH after
they complete additional training through the College’s nursing program. At least 60% of these
employees will be of low or moderate income, according to HUD income limits.

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this letter. Thank you.
Sincerely,

o

Tom Clairmont
President & CEO

Lakes Region General Hospital ¢ 80 Highland Street, Laconia, New Hampshire 03246 ¢ Telephone 603.524.3211

www.lrgh.org



building on OUR strength
and experience

[ RGHealthcare

care. compassion. community.
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celebrating 1 0 years as LRGHealthcare

and we've o




“It is wonderful how much may be done if we are always doing.”

... Thomas Jefferson

WE BEGAN THE LAST DECADE WITH A CHALLENGE BEFORE US — the merging of two
hospitals. We understood that the work we dedicated ourselves to would represent the best of
our abilities. Committed to increasing our capacity for patients, adding more depth in staffing,
and more options for patients, we knew that joining our hospitals would provide stability to both
organizations, ultimately benefiting the communities we serve.

Since the union of Lakes Region General Hospital and Franklin Regional Hospital we have
experienced a succession of collaborative renovations, expansions, and new programs resulting in
the only successful hospital merger in New Hampshire.

Guided by the strength of our highly skilled and caring physicians, nurses, staff, and volunteers,
we have consistently grown, providing an increasing range of services to our patients. By fully
engaging, making sacrifices, sharing resources, and keeping the residents of the Lakes and Three
Rivers regions our top priority, we have protected our facilities in a historically difficult economy.

Reflecting upon the last 10 years, it becomes clear that our fiscally sound investment in equipment
and facility upgrades and new services has been the hallmark of our journey. Keeping pace with
leading medical centers, we have acquired state-of-the-art 3D/4D ultrasound machines, digital
mammography, a PET Scanner, mobile MRI, new cardiac monitors and EEG, and our operating
rooms are brimming with new devices including cutting edge equipment for less invasive surgeries.
OurWomen's Health and Imaging Center, Family Birthplace, Pain Management Department, Sleep
Center, Oncology Department, Coumadin Clinic, Senior Services, and Intensive Care Unit have all
been upgraded. We opened the new patient care addition at LRGH, remodeled the Emergency
Department at FRH, unveiled a new Interlakes Medical Center, and expanded Hillside Medical
Park, which houses primary care providers, pain management, the sleep center, orthopedics, the
Hillside Surgery Center and rehabilitation services.

It is important to recognize through all this growth that to its core, this is a family of people who
commit their lives each day to caring for those in our communities. Our foundation is grounded in
their compassion and devotion to our patients.

As we celebrate this remarkable milestone, we renew our commitment to local resources,
regional excellence, and global technology as we lead the charge toward a healthy future.

Tom Clairmont
President & CEO, LRGHealthcare

Stuart Trachy
Chair, LRGHealthcare Board of Trustees
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Peter Russell

Scott Clarenbach
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Cynthia Baron
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Robert Evans, MD
Donald Flanders
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Paul Racicot, MD
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Chair
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Secretary
Adjunct Professor
Lakes Region Community College

Treasurer
President & CEO, LRGHealthcare

Consultant
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Lakes Region Anesthesiology, PA

Owner, President & Treasurer/
Byse Insurance Agency
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Realtor
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NH State Representative
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OUR PEOPLE / TECHNOLOGY / FACILITIES

Our People

At the heart of LRGHealthcare

are our people —a family committed
to improving the health of our
community.

Technology

Our investment in technology
assures our community’s ac-

cess to state-of-the-art equip-
ment when they need it most.




Facilities

A significant investment in buildings and
infrastructure enables us to deliver the
highest level of care in our modern facilities.




CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY

In fiscal year 2011, LRGHealthcare provided to our community
more than $30 million in programs and services for which we

were not reimbursed. Here are some examples of the benefits
we provide:

Community Health Services — $772,901

LRGHealthcare provides a variety of services designed to help
our community access healthcare services, as well as provide
education to help community members live healthier lives.

Our HealthLink Program is a resource and referral program that
provides financial counseling and support. Last year, we enrolled
4610 people (897 more than FY'10).

Our Community Education Department participated in 184
preventive health and safety programs and special events,
reaching over 4100 people.

Health Professions Education — $336,863

Last year, LRGHealthcare provided more than 250 students,
interested or engaged in healthcare careers, the opportunity to
work in a clinical setting.

Subsidized Health Services — $11,839,070

LRGHealthcare provides a number of health services because
they meet an essential community need, even though we realize
a loss on them each year.

Access to primary care services is one of the biggest

challenges facing this and other New Hampshire communities.
LRGHealthcare subsidizes primary care practices to ensure
ongoing access—not just in the communities where our hospitals
operate, but throughout our service areas. Without these
subsidies, many of these practices would not be able to sustain
their operations.

To ensure access to Emergency Response Services,
LRGHealthcare partners with the City of Laconia to support
emergency ambulance services. Last year alone, the ambulance
services responded to 2,178 calls.

Regionally, LRGHealthcare is also actively partnering with EMS
programs, supporting education and training, cost recovery and
compliance. Collaborating on these initiatives helps to maintain
strong EMS programs in our communities.

Community Building Activities — $150,337

LRGHealthcare works in partnership with a number of local
organizations to strengthen and develop our community.
LRGHealthcare is a key member of community safety and support
systems enhancement efforts. We participate in Emergency
Preparedness efforts and actively work with our partners in the
community to address public health initiatives.

6

Charity Care — $8,545,037

Last year, LRGHealthcare provided
$8,5645,037 (based on costs) in free
or discounted care to people in our
community.

Government — Sponsored
Healthcare (Medicaid) $8,409,783
Medicaid has long been under
funded by the State and Federal
Governments and with our
disproportionate share of Medicaid
patients, this has resulted in
significant financial struggles.

Last year, LRGHealthcare had
$8,409,783 in unreimbursed costs
for Medicaid patients.

Government — Sponsored
Healthcare (Medicare and
uncollectable Debt) $15,667,045
The State of New Hampshire's
Community Benefit reporting form
does not include certain categories
that are recognized as community
benefits for other purposes. In
addition to the benefits listed
above, LRGHealthcare also had
$12,814,021 in unreimbursed costs
for care of Medicare patients;
$2,853,024 in uncollectable

debt; and provided an additional
$2,395,698 in Patient Advantage
discounts.

For a copy of the 2011
LRGHealthcare Community
Benefits Report and more
information on our activities
in each of these areas,
please visit our website at
www.Irgh.org.
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gratefully acknowledges the
commitment of all those
who have supported our
mission with a contribution
between October 1, 2010
and December 31, 2011.

We also recognize the quiet
dedication of those who
wish to remain anonymous.

Gifts listed include donations to
LRGHealthcare departments and
programs, events, appeals, and

the Wellness Centers.

Gifts to the Capital Campaign,
including pledges will be fully
recognized at the conclusion

of the Campaign.



LRGHealthcare Annual Financial Report

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 & 2009

(in thousands)

2011 % of Rev 2010 % of Rev 2009 % of Rev

REALIZED REVENUE $210,222 $202,943 $200,226

LESS OPERATING EXPENSES $210,209 $205,278 $199,225
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS $13 0.0% ($2,335) -1.2% $1,001 0.5%
NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES), NET $800 ($11,420) * $929
REVENUE & GAINS OVER (UNDER) $813 0.4% ($13,755) -6.8% $1,930 1.0%

EXPENSES & LOSSES

UNREALIZED GAINS (LOSSES) AND EFFECT

OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION

LIABILITY ($7,552) $15,547 * ($15,735)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED

NET ASSETS ($6,739) -3.2% $1,792 0.9% ($13,805) -6.9%

Note these amounts include an $11 million reclassification of the unrealized loss in 2009 to a realized Nonoperating loss in 2010 related to the refinancing of debt

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, 2010 & 2009

(in thousands)

2011 2010 2009
ASSETS
ASSETS $112,555 $138,555 $91,664
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
NET OF ACCUM. DEPRECIATION $98,929 $74,374 $55,714
TOTAL ASSETS $211,484 $212,929 $147,378
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES $177,928 $174,028 $111,710
NET ASSETS $33,556 $38,901 $35,668

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $211,484 $212,929 $147,378



LRGHealthcare

80 Highland Street, Laconia, New Hampshire 03246
www.lrgh.org 603-524-3211




LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

O o B



BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Trustees
LRGHealthcare and Subsidiary

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of LRGHealthcare and
Subsidiary as of September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of LRGHealthcare's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of LRGHealthcare and Subsidiary at September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
and the consolidated results of their operations, changes in their net assets, and their cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, LRGHealthcare adopted revisions to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and changed its method of

accounting and financial statement presentation for the noncontrolling interest in equity of its consolidated
subsidiary during 2011.

k_Br:.lfer f\)mman?/%ﬂs

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
January 17, 2012

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

1



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets whose use is limited

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for losses
of $11.5 million in 2011, $10.0 million in 2010,
and $8.4 million in 2009

Estimated third-party payor settlements receivable

Other receivables

Current portion of pledges receivable

Inventories

Other prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Assets whose use is limited:
Under bond indenture held by trustee
Under workers' compensation trust agreement
By donors or grantors for specific purposes
By donors for capital improvements
By donors for permanent endowment funds
Total assets whose use is limited
Less portion committed for current obligations
Noncurrent assets whose use is limited
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment, net
Prepaid pension costs

Pledges receivable, net of current portion

Other assets

Total assets

2011 2010 2009
$ 3,064,244 § 1,050,539 § 21,369,110
- - 13,712,131
24,376,137 21,217,048 19,554,387
196,687 2,154,064 3,411,466
6,803,787 3,980,684 2,398,252
264,118 270,041 -
4,626,703 4,317,932 2,779,483
2,425,511 2,446,431 2,751,017
41,757,187 35,436,739 65,975,846
43,671,696 76,627,994 13,712,131
1,813,534 1,768,338 1,950,755
1,535,899 1,145,773 1,164,467
2,480,652 1,690,486 1,055,342
2,199,737 2,199,737 2.247.563
51,701,518 83,432,328 20,130,258
- — (13,712,131}
51,701,518 83,432,328 6,418,127
12,713,292 12,186,941 17,624,549
98,929,067 74,373,516 55,713,747
- 1,157,639 =
660,756 601,909 =
5,721,983 5,739,970 1,645,306
$211.483.803 $212,929,042 $147,377,575



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Line of credit

Accounts payable

Accrued employee compensation:
Payroll
Compensated absences
Health care and other accrued benefits

Accrued interest and other expenses

Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt:
Bonds
Capital lease obligations
Less current installments

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Other long-term liabilities:
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Workers' compensation liabilities
Accrued pension/retirement costs

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
LRGHealthcare net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Permanently restricted

Total LRGHealthcare net assets

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

2011 2010 2009

$ —~ $ 2,500,000 $ 2,500,000
9,970,363 7,067,672 7,854,197
1,918,535 1,742,984 4,939,833
4,129,382 4,156,705 4,187,069
1,866,846 2,494,349 1,700,032
5,480,923 4,025,801 348,739
375,000 980,308 941,370
23,741,049 22,967,819 22,471,240
147,908,834 148,074,450 71,515,000
= 2,865,566 3,806,935
(375.000) (980,308) (941,370)
147,533,834 149,959,708 74,380,565
= " 12,656,615
1,144,900 976,352 1,015,576
5.508.269 " 1,185,548
154,187,003  150.936,060  _89.238,304
177,928,052 173,903,879 111,709,544
26253296 32,992,872 31,200,659
4,931,946 3,708,209 2,219,809
2.199.737 2,199,737 2.247.563
33,384,979 38,900,818 35,668,031

170,772 124,345 _
33,555.751  _39.025.163 35.668.031
$211,483,803 $212,929.042  $147,377.575




LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Unrestricted revenue and other support:
Net patient service revenue
Disproportionate share funding
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Other revenue
Total unrestricted revenue and other support

Expenses:

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Employee benefits

Provision for doubtful accounts

Purchased services and contracted physicians

Pharmacy supplies

Chargeable supplies

Nonchargeable supplies

Depreciation and amortization

Rent and occupancy expenses

Professional services

Interest expense

Insurance

Repairs

Tuition, advertising and other

Dues, travel and education

New Hampshire Medicaid Enhancement Tax
Total expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Gifts and bequests
Interest and dividend income, not classified elsewhere
Net realized gains on investments

Loss on extinguishment of debt
Loss on termination of interest rate swap agreements
Nonoperating gains (losses), net

Consolidated excess (deficiency) of revenue and

nonoperating gains (losses) over expenses

Continued next page.

2011 2010 2009

$193,636,524 $187,707,937 $183,481,559
9,751,772 9,050,987 9,586,012
438,474 393,366 1,707,203
6.395.506 5.790.321 5.451.611
210,222,276 202,942,611 200,226,385
87,449,546  86,045209 84,382,206
5,947,534 6,078,427 5,877,921
11,118,240 10,855,759 11,525,122
13,034,943 13,963,862 12,863,566
24,121,454 22,272,798 19,620,132
12,458,019 12,189,640 12,061,094
11,188,507 9,420,303 10,217,413
7,310,384 7,135,979 7,104,678
8,439,629 7,935,335 7,894,235
6,846,016 6,165,391 5,516,343
1,206,391 1,387,602 1,510,308
5,664,925 4,572,307 3,216,089
2,453,904 b 279788 2,142,395
2,662,795 2,540,971 2,580,673
2,308,587 2,446,941 2,211,243
945,962 939,143 916,058
7.051,743 9,050,987 9.586.012
210.208.579  205.278,442  199.225.488
13,697  (2,335,831) 1,000,897
170,375 219,382 399,560
445,118 365,532 529,974

184,960 131,179 -

= (973,857) =

- (11.037.500) _
800,453  _(11.295.264) 929,534
814,150  (13,631,095) 1,930,431



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009

Consolidated excess (deficiency) of revenue and

nonoperating gains (losses) over expenses § 814,150 $(13,631,095) § 1,930,431
Excess of revenue and nonoperating gains

(losses) over expenses attributable to

noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary (477.815) (124.345) —
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating gains

(losses) over expenses attributable to LRGHealthcare 336,335 (13,755,440) 1,930,431
Adjustment to pension liability (7,328,262) 738,464 (8,640,391)
Net assets released from restrictions for equipment

purchases and property improvements 88,664 91,180 104,007
Impact of interest rate swap agreements - 12,656,615 (6,671,229)
Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments (25,542) 1,115,499 (527,526)
Sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 189,229 945.895 -
(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets

attributable to LRGHealthcare $ (6,739,576) $__1.792213 $(13,804.708)

See accompanying notes.



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

LRGHealthcare unrestricted net assets:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and nonoperating gains
(losses) over expenses attributable to LRGHealthcare $
Adjustment to pension liability
Net assets released from restrictions for equipment
purchases and property improvements
Impact of interest rate swap agreements
Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments
Sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary
(Decrease) increase in LRGHealthcare
unrestricted net assets

LRGHealthcare temporarily restricted net assets:
Restricted contributions and pledges
Restricted interest and dividend income
Grants
Net unrealized gains on investments
Release from permanently restricted net assets
Current year income and unrealized gains
from permanently restricted net assets

Release of net current year unrealized gains
to unrestricted net assets

Accumulated income and appreciation from
permanently restricted net assets (note 15)

Net assets released from restrictions for:
Equipment purchases and property improvements
Operating purposes
Operating purposes - UPMIFA

Increase (decrease) in LRGHealthcare
temporarily restricted net assets

LRGHealthcare permanently restricted net assets:
Restricted interest and dividend income
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments
Release of net current year income and unrealized
gains to temporarily restricted net assets
Release of accumulated income and appreciation
to temporarily restricted net assets
Decrease in LRGHealthcare
permanently restricted net assets

(Decrease) increase in LRGHealthcare net assets

Continued next page.

2011 010 2009
336,335  $(13,755,440) $ 1,930,431
(7,328,262) 738,464  (8,640,391)
88,664 91,180 104,007
= 12,656,615 (6,671,229)
(25,542) 1,115,499 (527,526)
189.229 945,895 -
(6,739,576) 1,792,213  (13,804,708)
1,515,842 1,657,249 267,529
45,960 44,183 56,754
148,495 183,390 86,055
929 46,730 »
- 47,826 -
41,398 82,919 9,780
(1,749) (89,351) -
- — 1,216,730
(88,664) (91,180) (104,007)
(438,474) (393,366) (311,610)
_ _ (1,395.593)
1,223,737 1,488,400 (174,362)
40,578 40,298 57,523
820 42,621 (47,743)
(41,398) (82,919) (9,780)
. (47.826)  (1.216.730)
. (47.826) _(1.216.730)
(5,515,839) 3,232,787  (15,195,800)



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009
(Decrease) increase in LRGHealthcare net assets $ (5,515,839) § 3,232,787 §(15,195,800)
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary:
Excess of revenue and nonoperating gains (losses)
over expenses attributable to noncontrolling
interest in consolidated subsidiary 477,815 124,345 =
Contributions, distributions and other changes
in noncontrolling interest (431,388) = s
Increase in noncontrolling interest
in consolidated subsidiary 46.427 124,345 -
(Decrease) increase in total net assets (5,469,412) 3,357,132 (15,195,800)
Net assets, beginning of year 39,025,163 35.668.031 50,863,831
Net assets, end of year $.33,555,751 $.39.025.163 §$_35,668.031

See accompanying notes.



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

]

011 2010 009

Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

$ (5,469,412) § 3,357,132 §(15,195,800)

Depreciation and amortization 8,439,629 7,935,335 7,894,235
Provision for doubtful accounts 13,034,943 13,963,862 12,863,566
Restricted investment income (86,538) (84,481) (114,277)
Adjustment to pension liability 7,328,262 (738,464) 8,640,391
Contributions, distributions and other

changes in noncontrolling interest

in consolidated subsidiary 431,388 - -
Restricted contributions, pledges and grants (1,664,337) (1,888,465) (353,584)
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on

investments, net (161,167) (1,336,029) 527,526
Impact of interest rate swaps - (1,619,115) 6,671,229
Sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary (189,229) (945,895) -
Bond premium amortization (165,616) (138,014) -
Loss on extinguishment of debt - 973,857 -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

(16,194,032)

(15,626,513}

(13,190,785)

Estimated third-party settlements 1,957,377 1,257,402 74,391
Other receivables (2,823,103) (1,582,432) 207,584
Inventories (308,771) (1,538,449) (672,877)
Other prepaid expenses 20,920 304,586 (417,957)
Accounts payable 2,902,691 (786,525) 73,469
Accrued employee compensation (479,275) (2,432,896) 3,167,757
Accrued interest and other expenses 1,455,122 3,677,062 (69,599)
Workers' compensation liabilities 168,548 (39,224) (17,785)
Accrued/prepaid pension/retirement costs (662.354) (1.604,723) (4,024.111)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,535,046 1,108,001 6,063,373
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
net of disposals (32,739,979)  (26,442,190) (12,071,652)
Increase in other noncurrent assets (237,214) (1,019,234) (27,877)
Decrease (increase) in assets whose use is limited 31,730,810 (63,302,070) 13,246,071
(Purchases) sales of long-term investments, net (365,184) 6,773,637 (1,178,692)
Sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary 189.229 945.895 -
Net cash used by investing activities (1,422,338) (83,043,962) (32,150)

Continued next page.



LRGHEALTHCARE AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt and capital lease
Proceeds of bonds net of issuance costs
Restricted investment income and
gain on sale of investments
Net (repayments) proceeds on/from line of credit
Restricted contributions, pledges and grants
Swap termination payoff
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest (including

capitalized interest of $2,687,859 in 2011 and
$2,633,501 in 2010)

See accompanying notes.

o
o

10 009

g

11

$ (2,865,566) $(72,456,369) $(10,507,401)

- 144,010,263 (338,033)

86,538 84,481 114,277
(2,500,000) - 2,500,000
1,611,413 1,016,515 353,584

- (11,037,500) -
(431.388) - -

_(4,099.003) _61,617.390 {7,877.573)

2,013,705  (20,318,571)  (1,846,350)

1,050,539 21,369.110 23.215.460

$_3.064244 $_1,050539 $_21.369.110

$_8213025 $_3390,732 $_3,607.998




Laerdal Medical Corporation

167 Myers Corners Road TERRITORY MANAGER
Laerd a| Wappingers Falls, NY 12590 Tara Landry
Fax Order To: (800)227-1143 (800) 648-1851x2588
helping save lives Phone Order To: 877-Laerdal tara.landry@laerdal.com

Tax ID: 13-2687752
INSIDE SALES REPRESENTATIVE SALES SUPPORT SPECIALIST

Lisa Timmons Natalie Lasher
(800) 648-1851x4295 (800) 648-1851x
lisa.timmons@|laerdal.com natalie.lasher@laerdal.com

Monday, February 13, 2012

QUOTE NUMBER : 1-ZVJKS

ATTN: Wendy Wilson CUSTOMER NUMBE_R : 82‘[?11;;3::2

Chair, Department of Nursing EXPIRATION DATE :

New Hampshire Community

379 Belmont Road ’

Laconia NH 03246 SHIP TO:

(603) 524-3207x6747 New Hampshire Community

wwilson@ccsnh.edu 31 College Drive

Concord NH 03301

QTY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION LIST PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

2 212-01101 SimMan 3G Complete with 17" Monitor $67,500.00 $67,500.00 $135,000.00

Includes SimMan 3G Manikin, Software and License, Operator's tablet PC, Patient Monitor and Software,
Patient Cables, Webcam, Drug Recognition Kit, Soft Sided Transportation Cases, 1 Year Warranty.

2 212-VPLUSP3 Simman 3g Valueplus Platinum (3 Yr) $18,495.00 $18,495.00 $36,990.00
Includes Installation, Extended Warranty through Year 3, Preventative Maintenance On-Site & Loaner.
1 212-90150 Intro to SimMan 3G On-Site $3,595.00 $3,595.00 $3,595.00
A Laerdal Instructor will travel to your facility and teach up to 8 participants.
1 215-99950 Identified SimStore Content $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
SMS3698 & SMS3729 Simulation in Nursing Education Volume | & Il Scenario Set for SimMan 3G Instructor
Mode ’
ITEM TOTAL: $183,085.00
ESTIMATED TAX: $0.00
SHIPPING & HANDLING: $700.00
TOTAL: $183,785.00

Appropriate Sales Tax will be added to invoice — Pricing and Availability are subject to change
Shipping/Handling costs will be added to invaice

Terms:

. Net 30 Days for approved open accounts; CIA; Credit Cards accepted

. One(1) year warranty on manufactured products and 90 day warranty on refurbished products

. Two(2) year parts replacement warranty with technical assistance by phone on all Hill-Rom refurbished products

. Delivery of product to a specific location within your building, if requested is at an additional charge and not included in this quote

. Quotes that included training. Training must be booked and performed 1 year from installation. The training obligation expires one year from install

Page 1 of 1
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